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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
BEFORE
BOARD OF @VERNORS OF THE FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM
In the Matter of

TRANSAMERICA CORPORATION

Room 1202,

Federal Reserve Board Bulliding,
Washington 25, D. C.,

Thursday, February 10, 1949

The above-entitled matter came onfor further hearing pur-

suant to adjournment, at 10:30 ofclock a. m.

BEFORE:
RUDOLPH M. EVANS, Member, Board of Governors, of
the Federal Reserve System,
Hearing Officer.
APPEARANCES:

J. LEONARD TOWNSEND, Solicltor, Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve
System, Washington, D. C., and
G. HOWLAND CHASE, Asslstant Solicitor, Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve
System, Washington, D. C.,
appearing on behalf of the Board.

SAMUEL B. STEWART, JR., and }

HUGOC A. STEINMEYER, 300 Montgomery Street, San
Francisco, Californla, appearing
nn behalf of Transamerica Corpor-
ation.
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i PROCEEDINGS

2 THE HEARING OFFICER: The hearing will come to

3 | order, please.

4 There is one short note I would like to read into

5 I the record, in announcing at pages 675 to 678 of the record,
6 |my rullng on Respondent?’s notice and demand for the production
4+ #of certaln papers from the Board's flles.

8 I neglected to state "Governors Eccles and Clayton
9 11d1d not particlpate in the Board!s conslderation or decision
10 || of the guestlion whether the Board was willing to produce the
11 | papers called for by Respondent's notice and demand."

12 I wish now to announce that Governors Eccles and

13 ||Clayton did not participate in the Board‘s consideration or
14 (|declslion o that question.

15 Mr. Stewart, you may go ahead.

16 MARRINER S. ECCLES

17 ||{the witness on the stand at the time of the recess, resumed

18 /|the witness stand and testifled further as follows:

19 CROSS EXAMINATION(Resumed)
20 BY MR. STEWART:
21 Q Mr. Eccles, in looking over yesterday's transcript,

22 |I notice at page 700 that I asked you this question and you

23 {gave thls answer:
24 "How much of your time would you say that you have spent

25 iin Utah in the last five or six years, Utah, Idaho, and Wyoming,
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let'e say?"

"Answer: Well, I think the first seven years I was in
Washington I was in Utah ten times in seven years."

Then, after that I asked you some more questions
about your answer and never got back to get an answer to the
guestion I asked.

Now, will you tell me, in answer to that question,
how much of your time you have spent in Utah in the last five
or six years, that is, Utah, Idaho, and Wyoming?

A I can tell you in a general way. I spent -- I think
I was in the West last year four times. When I ceased to be
Chairman, I had a 1little more time to travel, and I visited
the Reserve Bank in San Francisco, the conference last spring,
that 18, at the conference of the Reserve Banks, the branches.
I went out tomake a speech at Iowa last fall and went on to
Utah.

During the war period, when things were pretty
héctic there, I spent very little time out there. I have
two sons and a daughter who are married and who live in the
West, and I have taken occasion, whenever 1t was possible, to
get away from here, 1f there 1is any respite, to go out there.
They have been out of Washington since 1941. I would say,
with reference to my time that I have spent on Board matters,

that it would average very much more than the 4C hours a

week which 1s the standard time in Washington for all Federal
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employees, s0, based upon what 1is considered one’s full time
by Government employees, I am sure that I put in my full

time to the Government, and I am sure the staff, the other
Board members who are around here, and the record of my at-
tendance at the Board meetings and other conferences where my
presence 1s required, would demonstrate that there has been
no neglect of public duty due To my absence f{rom Washington in
Utah or Idaho or any other part of the country.

To be able, as you implied in an earlier question,
to influence the Board so completely that there are np
negative votes or disagreements and to be able to do that and
at the same time we absent from Washington in neglect of duty,
I must be even better than I think I am.

Q Now, Mr. Eccles, of course, you have read into my
question something that I didn‘t ask you. I didn‘’t mean to
suggest that you worked less than 40 hours a week on Board
business. I would like to repeat the gquestion. which 1is:
how much of your time you have spent in Utah, Idaho and
Wyomling during the last five or six years. I don't believe
you have yet given me even an estimate anthat.

A I have been out there from two to three times a year,
period, and I have stayed, while I have been there any time,
anywhere from a few days to a2 few weeks. That 1s the -- if

they were closer, as 1s the case wlth -- 1f my home was

ﬂcloser, as l1s the case with many people in Washington, I
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i {might spend the week ends there.

2 Q Are you able to glve us any kind of estimate at

3 flall as to the amount of time on the average?

4 A I have given you the best estimate I can give you.
5 Q I see. All right, sir.
3 You have mentioned in your testimony that Eccles Invest-

7 {{ment Company owns stock of a number of corporations engaged

8 {in businesses other than banking as well as owning stock of

9 I First Security Corporation, which owns the banks. I would like
10 fto inquire at this time about some of those other interests.
11 1 The Eccles Investment Company has what percentage of invest-
12 iment in the Stoddard Lumber Company?

13 A Oh, about thirty-some-odd per cent. I mignt ad-

14 vise you, however, that that company has practically ceased

15 |l operation as its timber has all been cut out and it is a com-

16 || pany that controls practically nothing except cash at the

17 | moment.

18 Q You are president and a director of that company?
4 A That is correct.

20?' Q And how long have you been such?

21 A Since 19 -- well, since the control of the company

sz was acquired in 1928,

|

23 Q And when did the compaihy cease operations, as you
24 put it a moment ago?

25 A lLast April.
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That is April, 194897
That is right.

It was active up to that time, was 1t?

N
> L& P O

It was operating. It has a small operation under
5 |a lease basis with a former manager, which is tying up rough
6 {| lumber and milling it. That i1s a part of the plant at the

7 imecment. That 1s the extent of 1lts operation.

8 Q Do you or any member of your family own any other

9 || companies in the interest of Eccles Investment Company ?

10 A I have 300-scme-odd shares, 340 shares out of a

1t || total of about 9,000. No other member in my family, I think,
12 | owns any of the stock of that company.

13 Q ¥ho does own the rest of the stock?

14 A Browning Company hds about half as much as Eccles
15 || Investment Company and the balance of it 1s fairly widely

16 | scattered among people who mostly live in Oregon.

17 Q Eccles Investment Company,plus your interest, plus
18 | the Browning Company‘'s interest is about or a iittle more than
19 | 50 per cent?

20 A That 1s correct. The three of them would control
21 {4t. That 1s, Browning Compay a&nd Eccles Investment Company
22 control 1t.

3 Q Does the Eccles Investment Company have any inter-

2 lest in the Anderson Lumber Company?

25 A The Anderson Lumbey Comnany 18 3 retall lumber oper-
Digitized for FRASER
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1 jation that operates mostly in Utah. They, I think, have one

2 |l or two yards in Idaho. The Eccles Investent Company &nd

s || the members of the Eccles family own about half and the

4 || Anderson family, yhgare the offlcers and who' ™un and manage

5 || the company and have done 1t from the beginning, own the other
¢ {thalf. The Browring interests have no interest whatever. That
7 || company was organized by Anton Anderson, who has bheen dead

g |a good many years. He died in his ninetles, and he induced

9 i my father in about 1903 or 1904, to go into the company--they
10 || only had one yard--and to finance an @xpansion of the company,
1 [{and that 18 where the interest in the company came from, and
12 {{ it has continued up to this time.

13 | Q You are a director of that company?

14 A I am a director. I have always been -- I have been
15 | a director since my father's death. I have never been an

16 || officer. I have been a director, I think, since 1913 or 1914.

17 Q And that, of course, covers all of the time during

18 | which you have been a member of the Becard of Governors?

19 A Yes, that 1s correct.

20 Q Does the Eccles Investment Company have any inter-
2! est in the Amalgamated Sugar Company?

22 A No. No. The Eccles Investment Company does not
23 i have any interest in the Amalgamated Sugar Company.

24 Q Do you or any membercf your family own any interest

25 | in that company?
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! A I have a substantial interest and other members of
2 imy family, individually, have a substantial interest in the
3 || Amalgamated Sugar Company.

4 | Q What 1s the approximate amount of that interest?

5 A It may be as much as, I would say roughly, around

6 110 per cent. I do not think it would be more than that. 1

7 i would say roughly about 10 per cent.

8 Q That 1s, you and your family, or Just you?
o A That 1s me and the other eight members of my family.
10 Q And does the Browning family own any interest in

1 | that company?

12 A The Browning family has a small interest in it. I

13 {would saymeybe 2 or 3 per cent. It is owned by individual

14 | members of the family.

15 Q Who owne ithe rest of that company?

16 A That company 1s owned by -- I wouldn't say how many
17 || thousand stockholders. The stock is very widely held in

18 | California, in New York. My interest in that company and

19 i my family interest goes back, my father organized that

20 | company in 1898 for a sugar factory.

21 Q And you are the Chairman of the Board and a director
2 || of that company?

23 A I am the Chairman of the Board and a director of

24 || that company.

25

Q And you have been throughout the period that you

Digitized for FRASER
http://fraser.stlouisfed.org/
Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis



asc9 749
¢ have been a member of the Board of Governors?

2 A That 1s correct.

3 Q Are yau also the president of the Eccles Hotels,
4Inc.?

5 A That 1s correct.

6 Q  Are you also a director of the Mountain States

7 || Implement Company?
8 A That 1s correct.
9 Q And are you also president and a director of the

10 || Sego Mill Products Company?

N A That 1s correct.

12 Q And you have held all of those positions throughout
13 | the time that you have been a member of the Board of Governors?
14 A That 1s correct.

15 Q Are you also Chairman of the Board and a director

16 jof the Utah Construction Company?

17 A That 1s correct.

18 Q And have been throughout the time that you have been
19 ia member of the Board of Governors?

20 A That 1s correct.

2 Q Have you attended Board meetings of that company

22 |l during the period that you have been a member of the Board

23 { of Governors?

24 A I have attended some meetings. I have possibly

25 | migsed more than I have attended.
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( Q Where are those meetings held?

2 A They are usually held in Ogden. Occasionally, they
3 thold one in San Francisco where thelr coperating office 1is,

4 || the general operating office.

5 Q And then you attended Board meetings of these other
6 |companies which we have mentioned, of which you are a member
7 || of the Board?

8 A I have not attended a meeting of the Sego Mill

9 || Products Company for ten years. I have attended occasibnany,
.10 | maybe once, whenever I happen to be out VWest and a meeting

it {18 held -- very often meetings are not held when I am there,
12  but 1f I should be there, then, I attend the meeting of the
13 || other companies, maybe one meeting a year, maybe two meetings
14 a year, depending upon the convenience and upon whether or

15 inot I am there.

16 Q I take it from your last answer, your last few

{7 j answers, then, that you know from your own personal exper-

18 | ience that holding the title of Chairman of the Board of a

19 |l company does not have any particular significance in determin-

20 § ing whether a man is active in the direction of the affairs

21 | of the company.

2 A The position, as in my case, is purely nominal and
23 i none of these that you have indicated have been established

24 || since coming with the Board. My connections all relate back

25 lto a family interest of a very long duration. In fact, prac-
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1 {tically all of these companies,their organization was prior
2 {|{to the organization of the First Security Company. These
3 |connections, of course, are a matter of public knowledge.
4 Q I understand that. I Just wanted the record to
5 |be clear on that.
6 A I was Jjust going to say that I think they have been
7 {1listed in the various directories, Who'!s Who,and I think there
s lare eight different directories that all of those connections
¢ iof mine have been listed in in the last fourteen years since
10 | I have been in Washington, so it is a mabter of public knowledge.
i1 Q Do you or any member ¢ your family own any
12 {direct interest in the Utah Construction Company?
13 A Yes. What 1s owned by the individuals and by the
‘amily? 14 i« family I think is about 15 per cent. It was 10 per cent
i5 jupwmtil two or three years ago, when a substantial blak of the
16 |company by a certain interest was sold and the Eccles family,

17 falong with some of the others, purchesed that block of stock,

i8 180 that up until about that time, I think it was three years
19 tago, the interest was 10 per cent. It 18 now, I would say,
20 japproximately 15 per cent. There are, however, other inter-
21 jests which are -- the Wallace interest 18 an interest

22 lwhich is substantially larger, it must be 25 per cent.

23 Q Who owns the rest of 1t?

24 A The Browning Company would hawve 7 or 8 per cent,

25 11 would think, and the balance of it 18 scattered among a
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great many people.

Q What is the business of the Utah Construction Com-
pany?

A The business 1s one of general contracting.

Q In pursuance of that business, it has had some im-
portant Government contracts in the last seven or elght years,
has 1t not?

A Over the 1life of the company 1t has had a great
many Government contracts.

Q Didntt 1t participate in the construction of the
Geneva Steel plant at Provo, Utah?

A It, along with two other companies, was asked
by the United States Steel Gorporation, which had been request-
ed to build that job, to bulld some of the foundations and

roads and heavy constrution work.



#2 - 753

1 Q That was about a two hundred million dollar Job

2 {lon the whole, wasn't 1t?

3 A I think that the job that the three companies had,
4 |together, was about 25 million dollars of the job. The total
5 [lJob exceeded 200 million dollars, but these three companies
6 ||were only one group of a great many contractors. That Job,
7 ino part of 1t was let out at bids because the plans, when

s |they started on the. job, the specifications, I understand,

9 |[were not ready as was true with practically all war work.

10 Q Yes.

n A That the Government brought in every construction
12 {{company that they could locate and negotiated with that com-
13 | pany, with those companies for work that they wanted done.
14 | I would say that the Utah Constructlon Company's work with
15 || the Government was,prior to the war, all on a competitive

16 || bld basis and practically everytiing since the war whatever

17 || the Government has, of course, had, unless it was some emer-

18 | gency Job.
19 Then I would like to say this with reference to the

20 || company: That practically all of the work that they parti-
21 | eipated in during the war, they did not in any instance
solicit the work, and in practically all of the participation
they were invited to participate with other contractors.

24 Q In addition to the contracets you have mentioned,

* or rather in the congstruction

they also had 2 contract for the,
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1 || of the 21 million dollar Davis Dam in Arizona, did they?

2 A They bid that dam job prior to the war and they

3 || were part, I understand, of a syndicate that did that Job.

4 | The job was cancelled because of the war and the Job was later
5 || put up to eompetitive bids, and because they had already

6 | bought a lot of equipment and so forth, they again bid on the
7 | Job and were the successful bidder on that Jjob.

8 Q And they also had a contract on the Norfolk Dam at

s || Mountain Home, Arkansas?

10 A The Morrison-Knudson had that contract. The Utah

11 || Construction Company had a participation. I don't know whether
12 | 1t was five or ten per cent.

13 Speaking of the Davis Dam, I think they had a 20 per cent
14 || participation. There were seven or eight other contractors.

15 || They were merely a participant.

16 Q And they also participated in the construction of

17 || the Alcan Highway?

18 A The Alcan Highway--they, I think, were brought in
19 | by the Army Engineers, along with quite a number of other
20 j contractors, and were assigned a certain part of that work
21 {{ to do.

22 I might add this at this point: I recall the

23 |{bitter complaints of the management feeling that they had
24 i to take that Job, because 1t was what they considered an

25 || extremely difficult effort and with no profit in it and
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1 jdiverted their organization, but it wzs like a great many
2 || other jobs during that time, they were brought in and asked

3 [{to do 1t and they did 1it.

4 Q Those were all Government contracts, were theymwt?
5 A They were.
o Q Isn't Utah Construction Company one of the joint

7 || contractors on a 20 million dollar contract let by the Army

s | in the Philippines?

9 A There are, I thihk, three companies. The Utah Con-

10 || struction Company 18 one of the three. As I understand it--

11 | and the reason I know so much about these 18 because Mr. Lesllie

12 || Gould, who I see is writing these cstorics, has raised all of

13 || these quetions, so I have taken occasion to be informed on the
14 | matter. He mentioned particularly this Army queation at least
15 | @ half dozen times, and the implication was made--I am glad

16 |} to have this opportunity to have this question brought up

17 | while I am on the stand--that the Utah Construction Ccmpany,
is || through some effort on sombody’s part, implied that I might

19 || have had someting to do with it, got them into the contract

20 | when it was supposed to go tc somebody else.

2i I inquired about this purposely because I knew nothing

22 | about 1t. I had not even heard that there was such a job

23 || or that the Utah Construction Company had any part in it, so
24 | T made an inquiry uith reference'to the faets in this case

25 | and I was told by Mr. Corey, vresident of the company, who
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runs the company and been with the company for forty years,
that the Army had a great deal of work to do' in the Pacific,
that they have no plans or specifications, that the work would
have to be subject to cancellation at any time, and that
they had picked nine contractors in the country who had done
a good deal of work during the war period and that they had
some experience with, and they, the Utah Construction Company,
was one of them.

The Utah Construction Company did not in any way

solicit the work or or any opportunity to participate in the

work, and the contractors, the two contractors that were

made partners of the Utah Construction Company, were two
contractors that the Army had picked and they gave these three
contfactors, including the Utah Construction Company, the
Philippine worl, three other contractors some other work, and
three other contractors some other work. That is the way

the Pacific work was handled.

I made inquiry as to the basis of this work and I was
advised that the fee upon this work was less than two per
cent, that they were to be paid on the work.

Q That 18 a cost plus fixed fee contract, is 1t?

A The size of the contract was somewhat indefinite
and I think the fee was fixed.

Q And 1t was a negotiated contract rather than one

'1et by bidding, 1s that correct?
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A Tt is correct.

Q You say that you had to make inquiry of Mr. Corey
to learn the facts about that situation?

A I did.

Q When did you make thet inguiry?

A Right after Mr. Gould's first article on this sub-
jeet, oh, I think it was elther the first part of last year
or the last part of 1947; some time over a year and a half
ago.

The company 1s operated by a management committee
composed of the engineers and the technical engineering people.
My connection is purely nominal and has been like that of
other directors of the company who determine the generszl
pollicy with reference to the company's financing and as to
the work to be done, The management committee I have referred
to has complete discretion to handle any and all work.

Q If you got this information at the time that you
Just said, ¥ou didn’'t know anything about it at all in October,
1946, did you?

A I don’t think so,

Q I have Just been handed, Mr. Eccles,; a copy of an
article by HMr. Gould, whom you brought into the matter a while
ago, dated October 9, 1946, which contains the following
paragraphs "In response to an inquiry to Mr. Eccles directly

|as to Utah, his assistant al the Federal Reserve, Elliot
|
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i |Thurston, has written this department, 'he, Eccles, has

» ldevoted his time and energy during his years as a public
official and not to matters such as the contracts of the

4 |Utah Comstruction Company about which you inquire,' but a
wire to L. C. Corey, presidentrof Utah Construction Company,
mentioning Eccles and asking information about some of the
big jobs on their doller value by Utah for the Government,

s |'has brought this reply: tCorey out of city and unable to

o |reach. Suggest you contact Eccles direct. Signed, Utah

10 | Congtruction Company'."

" A That would be a very natural wire, since he referred

12 || to me.

13 Q I see. How much stock in the First Security Cor-
cescee 14 || poration 1s owned by the J. M. and M. S. Browning Company?

15 A I couldn't tell you. If you are talking about

16 || voting stock or total stock-~
7 Q Well, if you know, give it to me in the separate

18 || categories.

19 A It would be my rough estimate that the Browning
20 ||Committee~-let me put it this way: Browning Company and
23 ||Becles Investment Company, as brought out before, not only

o7 | yesterday but before the Tobey Committee, when the bank holding
o3 || company bill wes under consideration, owned each 44, approxi-

24 |mately U4 per cent of the voting stock. Neither company

25 || owned very wuch, 1f any--I think Eccleg# Investment Company
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i lowns a little of the voting stock. The non-voting stock has
2 (been paid out or I think dispersed to the familes of the

3 {jcompanies, the families that owned the companies,

4 I would make a rough estimate that the Eccles
family owns possibly 15 per cent of the total stock of the

s |lcompany, total outstanding "A" and "B" stock.

7 Q That 1s divided, as I believe you told us before,
s |44 per cent of the voting and half of one per cent of the

¢ {(non-voting, approximately.

10 A That happens to be held by the Eccles Investment,

i1 ibut the individuals own a lot of the non-voting stock.

12 Q That 1s the individual members of the Eccles family?
13 A That 1s correct.

14 Q Do they own any of the voting stock?

15 A No.

16 Q And the Browning Company--I didn't get your answer
17 ||to that.

18 A The Browning Company own, I think, about the same

19 ||amount of the voting stock and I think, although I am not

20 {|8ure, that the individuals--there are two Browning families;
21 IJ. M. Browning family and the M. S. Browning family--I would
22 {|8ay that they owned 12 per cent--just a rough estimate--of
23 |[the total "A"™ and "B" atock.

24 Q And how much is that of the voting and how much

25 || non~-voting?
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1 A Let me see--

2 MR. TOWNSEND: Mr. Eccles, if you need to refresh
your recollection, I have the letier here that you sent %o

+ |Mr. Tobey under date of June 13, 1947, which might have
those figures in 1it.

6 THE WITNESS: I don't recall. This posasibly would
; igive you the information. Here is the letter that went to

g |the Senate Committee in response to Mr. Mario Glananni's wire

o {of June the 1lth.
10 BY MR. STEWART:

1 Q This is your letter of June 13, 1947 to Senator

12 |Tobey?
13 A That is correct.
14 Q I have a copy of that in the record, sir, and I

15 {{dldn't f£ind in it the answer to the question I Jjust asked
16 1you. If the answer 18 in there, you may use the letter to
17 i refresh your recollection in giving the answer.

18 A It gives the percentages. It does not glve the
jo ishares and I don't remember the numberof shares.

20 Q I see. Well, what is the percentage? I didn't

21 i £find that in there either.

22 A " Under capital structure, the First Security Corpor-
23 fation of Ogden, a bank holding company, of which members of
24 imy family own in the aggregate between 15 and 20 per cent,

25 |l the voting rights are limited to less than one-eleventh of the
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i | total outstanding shares".-does that answer your question?--
2 {{"while at the same time the voting shares receive over eight
; |per cent of all the dividends pald. The Glaninnl telegram

4 |states that perhaps I can explain”"--no that isn't it--

5 Q I don't think that answers the question, sir.
6 A Will you read the question again?
7 Q I can't read 1t, but I think I remember 1it.

The question was, you having testified that the
s ||Ecoles Company owns 44 per cent of the voting stock and the

10 || Browning Company owns 44 per cent of the voting stock, what

11 (| part of the voting stock is owned by members of the Brownlng
12 || family, you having told us that the Eccles family owns none
i3 || of the voting stock?

14 A I don't believe that the members of the Browning

15 || family owned any--

16 . Q 0f the voting stock?

17 A I don't believe so.

18 Q There is also non-voting.

19 A Themmbers of the families, both are non-voting,

20 || the individual members. Does that answer the question?
21 Q Yes sir, that answere the question., I didn't find
22 || that in the letter or I wouldn't have taken this time on 1it.
23 A The ownership of the stock, the Eccles Investment

24 || Company has, total for securiiy, approximately four per cent,

25 | so that the members of the famlily would own over ten per cent
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At this voint I would like to point cut that

{]

.
*

9 i
2
L

3
b8
H

my interest in the Eccles Investment Company is one-ninth

‘and, therefore, my indirect intervest,through Sccurity,oin
{

3

5 Ecoles Investment Company would be about four-tcnths

s jjone ser cent.

7 ! Q But that is a substantially larger percentage of
8 the voting power of the corporation, isn't 1t?

9 A Well, the voting power of the corporation 1s all
ic 1in the voting stock.

11 Q And there are about 227,000 shares of non-roting

12 | 3tock as against 20,000 shares of voting stock?
13 A I think that that is approximately ccrrect.
14 ; Q  And the non-voting stock, I believe, it sntitled

15 in liquidation to 35 dollars per share befcre the voting stock

1
16 : is entitled to anything, or is i1t the other way?
17 | A The non-votingstcck is senior in--
Q In liquidation?
17 A In liquidation. The 35 dollars a share is the price
20 féof the stock at the time the company was orgenired end the

21 original group that started the organization all got & like

22 “amoum of vuting stock. They, however, all got a vesy mueh

23 ; less, including the Eccles Investment Company, auount of non-

!.
24 % voting stock. The non-voting stocl was increased by some

25 -

§

nudlic offarings at one time in ovder £o raise jome eapital

| &L L
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i land at different times as a bank was taken in, the owners of
2 ithose banks were willing to accept the non-voting stock and
3 {they did so, but all of the original group got the same

4 jiproportionate number of voting and non-voting shares.

5. I might give you some reasons why--I was probably
6 |responsible for having the non-voting or voting stock.

7 Q Before you do that, is it a fact that the Eccles

g and Browning families and Eccles and Browning Companies have
9 || Just about the same percentage of the voting stock of First

10 || Security Corporation today?

1" A Yes.

12 Q As they owned when the corporation was first organized
13 || in 19227

14 A I think that is nct only true of them, but I think

i5 |1t 18 true of the Snocrofts and other people who have holdings.
16 Q And that condition has been maintained, has it

17 || not, by issuing non-voting stock in exchange for the stocks

18 || of banks which have been absorbed or consolidated in one way

19 {| or another?

20 A Some of it that way and in other cases, stock was

21 || offered for cash, a stock was offered for cash.

22 Al So that the effect of that was to keep the control

23 || of the banks purchased exclusively in the First Security

24 || Corporation, wasn®t 1it?

25 A Yes, that is right.
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1 Q Now, getting back to the Browning Company; M. S.

2 | Browning 1s one of the principals of that company, isn't he?
3 A M. S. Browning has been dead since 1922 or 1923.

4 | He died before the organization of the company.

5 Q What did the "M. S." stand for in his name?

6 A Matthew. I don't know what the middle name was.

s | Matthew Browning. "J. M." was John M. Browning, the great

s || gun inventor.

9 Q You mentioned the other day on your direct that

10 {{ one of the Brownings had the same name that you had.

h A Marriner Brouning is the only son of M. S. Browning.
12 Q What is his middle initial?

13 A I don't know. It 1s "A" and I don't know what 1t

i2 || stands for.

15 Q I have seen it both "M. A." and™. S." and I don't
16 | kmow which 1t is.

17 A His name ig M. A. Browning. He is the son of

;g'ih. S. Browning, and the only son.

19 Q He 1s an officer and director of Firat.Security

20 || Corporation, is he?

21 A He 18 the director and vice president.

22 Q Is he related to you?

23 A No relation whatever.

24 Q You have been associated in various business ventures

25 llwith the members of the Browning family for many years,
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haven't you?

A Yes, in some ventures, although they have a great

'many ventures that we have no interest in, and vice versa.

Q And M. A. Browning is a member of the Board of
Directors of the Utah Construction Company?

A Yes, that is right.
And has been for a long time?
No, not very long.

How long?

» O » O

I would say four or five years.

Q I see. And he is also a member of the Board of
Directors of the Amalgamated Sugar Company, of which you
are chairman?

A That is right.

Q And a member of the board of some of the banks
owned by First Security Corporation?

A He has only been a member of the board of the
Sugar Company for comparatively few years.

Q Now, would you answer the other question?

A He is_a director of the First Security Bank of
Utah and the First Security Bank of--no, I do not think of
Idaho. And he 18 a vice president and director of the
First Security Corporation.

Q I gather from the testimony you have given in

answer to the previous questions that the Eccles Investment
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: }Company and the members of the Eccles family, together,
2 |own an aggregate of 44 per cent of the voting shares of

First Security Corporation.

o

A Well, the Eccles Investment Company alone does.

i The members of the famlly own none of the voting shares.

I

Q So that in the aggrczate, they own 4k per cent?

£

o A That 1s right.
- Q And the Browning Company, together with the members
. | of the Browning family, own another i3 per cent of tke

2
i |} voting shares?

i
N

. A That is correct.

N

]g%? Q So that so long as the Eccles family and the Browning
»;%family continue to work together, 1t 1s not necessary for
;AEchem to solicit proxies in order to control a stockholders
;géfmeetiug of Pirst Security Corporation, is 1t?

is E A I would say that that is correct.

;74§ Q Who are the other stockholders of First Security

18 §Corporation owning a large amount, if there are any, of the

iy %voting stock of that ccmpany?

20 A I don't know. I just don't recall. Some of the
21 | Snceroft pecple, Take Senator Thomas! estate,

22; hies three banks came into the company and in the beginning
235 of the first organization, he got some. I don'iy know what

has happened to that since, his estate, but I just don't

25 I wacall,
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; Q Do any of those people own any significant amount?
2 A  Well, 1t couldn't be any great amount because there
is only 12 per cent outside of what the Eccles Investment
4 liland Browning Company have.
5 Q What would you say are the largest parts of that
that is owned by any other one stockholder or group?

A I wouldn't know; two per cent, maybe three percent,
something of that sort.

Q Is some of that voting stock in a voting trust?
ol A No, there 1s no voting trust. There is a--I think

1 || there 18 an agreement which was entered into. I think that

12 |18 covered in this--

13 2 There 1s some reference to it in the letter to

14 || Senator Tobey you referred to a moment ago.

15 A Yes. That states the situsion. Whether that agree-

16 || ment expired, I don't know. It 1s an agreement that has been

17 || made by my brothers since I came over here.

18 Q Can the voting trust be revoked, do you recall?

19 A I do not. I haven't seen it. I don't recall.

20 Q Then I take it you don't know whether the Eccles
5 || Investment Company has reserved the power to direct the

2 || trustees as to how they shall vote the stock?

23 A I don't recall that they have. I don't think that

24 || they have. I think that the agreement provides that certain,

25 | names of certain people, the voting trustees--my brothers
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1 iwere voting trustees and I think two of the Browning people

2 |were voting trustees, and I don't recall that there is any

3 ||direction given, I think that this report to the Senate

4 00nm1§tee covers that matter quite fully.

5 Q I see. HNow, can you, Mr. Eccles, give me a list of
6 j the banking services rendered by the First Securlty Banks of

7 {{Utah and Idaho?

8 THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Stewart, would you like

9 Il to take the usual recess?

10 THE WITNESS: I will answer that question, if I
1 | may.

12 MR. STEWART: All right.

13 THE WITNESS: Well, I couldn't give that to you

14 {| specifically, except to say that while I was connected with
15 || the organization we used to undertake through the banks to
16 || glve as complete banking service as was possible with refer-
17 | ence to commerclal loans and trust business and real estate
18 | loans and assuming credit loans, so I would say that like

19 || any progressive banking organization, thev are continuing

20 | to give the usual complete banking service.

21“ MR. STEWART: I may, after the recess, want to
22 || ask you some more questions about that, but just one more
23 j question at this time.

24 BY MR. STEWART:

25 Q Would pu be willing to have any officer who has been
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1 jassociated with any of the First Security Banks, or with the
2 IPirst Security Corporation, teatify in this proceeding, if

3 {requested by us to do so?

4 A I wouldn't want to ask them to do 1t. I am sure

5 llthat none of them would want to get into this matter. I feel
6 |a good deal of embarrassment even bringing in the personal

7 jaffairs or names of my family and my assoclates, and I am

g ||sure that they don't relish the 1dea and that the last thing
9 ithey would want to do would be to get on the stand in a case
10 {fof this sort.

1" Q My question, sir, was not quite whether you would
12 {ask them to do it. My question was whether you would be

13 |willing to have them do it if we asked them to do 1t?

14 A I would have no objection to them doing 1it, if

15 |1t 1s thelr desire to do 1it.

16 Q Having in mind, of course, that we have no subpoena
17 ||power in the case and that the only way we can get witnesses
18 |18 by request.,
19 A I am sure that none of them would want to have any
20 {part to play in a matter of this sort.
21 Q But you would have no objection if they were willing?
A I would have no objection.
THE HEARING OFFICER: The hearing will recess for

22
23
24 j|ten minutes.
25

(Recess taken.)
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THE HEARING OFFICER: Will the hearing come to

order, please.

BY MR. STEWART:

e Mr. Eccles, you testified on your direct examin-
ation that over your obJjection, Senator Glass introduced
a holding company "death sentence” bill in 1938, Is that
correct?

A I made no objection to Senator Glass.

Q Ko, but you objected to that kind of bill being
introduced.

A I would like to put it this way: That I had ex-
pressed myself as feeling that the bill was undesirable,
that a freeze bill or a regulatory bill would seem to me
more desirable.

e Isn't 1t a fact that when Senator Glass introduced
the b1l1l, he indicated that it was introduced by request
and that he had no personal enthusiasm for 1t?

A He sald that with reference to one bill, but I am
not sure it was the flrat bill he introduced. He introduced
two bills.

Q Yes, I am coming to the next one in a moment, but
before we get to that one--

A I don't know what he said when he introduced the
first bill,

Q It is a fact, you recall, isn't 1t, that that first
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bill did not even reach the stage of committee hearings in
the Caucus?

A I think that is correct.

Q And now with respect to this second bill that
Senator Glass introduced, which, according to my notes, was
on January 14, 1941, and the bill was called "S310" and was
entitled "To regulate the control of insured banks by
holding companies and for other purposes,” that bill 1s the
one you mentioned in which you recall that Senator Glass
stated, when introducing it, that he was doing so by request,
and if I might quote, "The bill I am now presenting is intro-
duced by request and with reservations.”

Do you recall that?

A Yes. I recall Senator Glass saying someting of
that sort, but I was not sure in which bill--I wasn't sure in
connection with which bill he made that statement.

Q And that b1l in 1941, you recall, was a bill which
contained a prohibition upon holding companies owning or
controlling after June 30, 1944 more than ten per cent of the
voting stock of an insured bank, and giving the Comptroller
of the Currency absolute veto over the payment of dividends
by the National Bank.

A I don't recall what the contents of the bill were.

There have been too many holding company bills discussed and

introduced for me to recall what was the contents of any
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particular bill.
Q I would agree with at least the first half of your

Bentence, that there had been too many of them introduced.

You recall, also, in connection with that 1941 bill, that Senator
(Glass stated, in substance, that the bill was prepared and
introduced at the request of the Treasury and that the Comp-
troller of‘'the Currency and the Treasury had permitted A. P.
Glanninl of the Bank of America to expand, and that now they
want to cut off his neck.

Do you recall that statement being made?

A No, I do not.

Q Do you recall that at about the time that bill was
introduced, Secretary Morgenthau made a public statement
that notwithatanding his dissatisfaction with the manner in
which Senator Glass introduced the bill, he was still in

favor of it and that it represented one hundred per cent

Treasury opinion?

A I don't recall that statement having been made.

Q Did you disagree with Secretary Morgenthau about
that bill, as you did the earlier ones, as you testified?

A I did not know anything about the bill until after
it was introduced. That bill was drawn--that blll was
prepared by the Treasury and I understood that Mr. Crowley
of the F.D.I.C. also was in on the drafting of that bill,

but the Board was not, and the bill was introduced without
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pur knowledge and our advice and without our consent,

objectives are about the same.

773

Q@  That bill was similar, was it not, to the earlier
bill to which you had made objections to Secretary Morgenthau?
A I think the purposes of it--I don't know that the

drafting of the bills are about the same, but I think the
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) Q From your knowledge of events from 1938 to 1941, or
2 11940, anyway, would you say it was falr to say that Secretary
s | Morgenthau was engaged in a continuous campalgn of persecution
4 against Transamerica Corporation, the Bank of America, and

s |A. P. Glannini?

é A I don't think that he was engaged in a campaign of

7 | persecution.

8 Q What would you call it, sir?

9 A I think that the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpora-
10 ition and the Treasury and the Comptrolleris office were very
1t imuch concerned about the expansion of Transamerica and

12 iprior to the getting of the new capital in the bank, I think
13 {lthey were very much concerned about the condition of the bank.
14 ' T would say that the Board was desirous of getting a holding
15 i company b1ll to curb or to regulate and control expansion of
16 ! bank holding eompanies and that the Board was desirous of

17 trying to work out with the other supervisory agencles a

18 isatisfactory agreement or arrangement with reference to Trans-
19 america and particularly the Bank of America, and, as was

20 ibrought out yesterday, we put forth a great effort at the

21 sinstigation or request of the (Glanninis to intervene and see
22 1f a satisfactory arrangement couldn't be worked out.

23 Q Now, in connection with those efforts of yours,

24 lwhich you have already described for us, didn't you learn

3 lthat Secretary Morgenthau was using every agency of the
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1 | Government which he found available for the purpose of further-
2 | ing his efforts to bring about some sort of adverse action

3 || against Mr. Glannini or Transamerica or the Bank of America?

4 MR. TOWNSEND: Will you read that guestion, please?
5 (Question read by the reporter.)
6 THE WITNESS: I hesitate to express an opinion

7 | a8 to what Secretary Morgenthau's intentions were.

8 | It seems to me that the record stands for itself.

9 BY MR. STEWART:
10 Q Just to refresh your recollection --
1 MR. TOWNSEND: Have you finished your answer, Mr.

12 || Eccles?

13 THE WITNESS: I finished 1t, yes.
14 BYMR. STEWART:
15 Q To refresh your recollection about some of those

16 | 1tems that the record does show, of course, you already told
17 | us about his efforts in 1938 and 1941 to put through
18 | death sentence legislation as to bank holding companies in the

12 | Congress. Isn't it a fact that at about that same time, and

20 {a fact to your knowledge, that at about that same time he

21 || handed over to the Securitles and Exchange Commission con-
22 | fidential bank examination reports which were the subject

23 | matter of a well-known lawsult?

24 MR. TOWNSEND: If you know, Mr. Eccles, of your

25 Il own knowledge.
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1 MR. STEWART: It is a matter of public knowledge.
2 || You know that.

3 MR. TOWNSEND: It isn't a matter of whether Mr.

4 || Morgenthau turned them over, Mr. Stewart, and I suggest the

5 || form of the guestion is certainly tricky and designed to ob-

6 || taln a form of expression of this witness that would be usable
7 | far beyond the confines of this case and so in the light of my

8 || observation, may 1t please the Hearing Officer, I obJject to

2 || the form of the question. We are not here trying Mr. Morgen-
10 i thau or any of his intentions in this case. I have been wry
11 i patient this morning and haven't objected one time up to the
12 j present time, but I thinkin view of what I have Jjust sald

13 1 that I ought to expand 1t a 1ittle bit further to say this:

14 || that certainly 1f this line of questioning is to be permitted
15 | to go on at much greater length, I shall have to find myself
16 || obJecting to each questiann. VWe have pursued this morning

17 ' subject matters that are so comietely unrelated to the issues
13 |l of this case as to be quite obvious to all. Whatever other

19 | intent there may be may perhaps be less obvious to some of

20 jus than others,but certainly we have reached a point now where
21 11t seems to me that counsel for Transamerica might well be
held within the permissible range of cross examination and
not allowed latitude to the extent already accorded him for

24 | developing issues that are obviously not related to this case.

25 MR. STEWART: If the Hearing Officer please, I,
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i || of course, started this present line of questioning only

2 | since the recess a few moments ago, and I respectfully submit
3 i that the question i1s entirely proper for developing the his-
4 torical background, motives and purposes in this situation

5 {which have certainly been put in 1ssue by this particular

6 fwitness.

7 MR. TOWNSEND: And 1f that be so, it 1s an easy

8 {matter to frame a question which will callfor the development
9 lof a background and not for a conclusion of a witness,

10 lespeclally when it 1s aimed 1n the fashlion in which these

11 lquestions appear to be aimed, and I respectfully submit, Mr.
12 {Hearing Officer, that you could inslat upon that, at least

13 las a falr requirement of the trial.

14 MR. STEWART: I have heard no objection from the
15 iwitness that he doesn't understand the gquestion.

t6 MR. TOWNSEND: Whether he does or whether he doesn’t,
17 iMr. Stewart, I have objected and I think I have an objection
18 lon an appropriate ground.

19 - THE HEARING OFFICER: The Hearing Officer will

20 {overrule the objection and the witness may answer 1f he knows.
i

21 MR. TOWNSEND: #Willsyot repeat the question, please?
22 (Question read by the reporter.)
23 THE WITNESS: I have no knowledge whatsoever of

24 lthe relationship of the Treasury with the Securities and

% lExchange Commission case which you refer to. The first
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1 | knowledge that I had that such a case was to be filled was

2 | the day before it was filed.

3 BY MR. STEWART:

4 Q Which was in 1938, wasn't 1t, Mr. Eccles?

5 A I think so. I think it was in the fall of 1938.

6 Q And, of course, my question related to the knowledge

7 ||which you acquired in the negotliations in which you told us

8 || you participated respecting the activities, the antagonistic
9 || activities, if you'please, of the Secretary of the Treasury,
10  at that time. Now, iz 1t your testimony that you did not,

1t | in the course of those negotiations, acquire ény knowledge of

12 t what he had done with respect to the Securities and Exchange

13 | Commission?
14 A That 1s correct,
15 Q All right, sir. Did you, in the course of those
16 | negotiations, acquire a knowledge of the activitles of the
17 || Bureau of Internal Revenue during that same perilod in trying
18 | to substantiate a tax claim against Mr. A. P. Glannini and
19 i against Transamerica Corporation in connection with Bancltaly's
20 i gift to the University of California?
21 MR. TOWNSEND: Did you finish the question?
MR. STEWART: Yes. Did he acquire a knowledge,
is the question.
MR. TOWNSEND: I am going, from here on, to attempt

{
25 'to protect this record against the excursions which Mr.
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Stewart 1s attempting to take us through into matters that
are 'wholly and absolutely beyond the scope of the proper
cross examination of this witness. The subject matter which
he has now alluded to brings in another action, concerning
which we are not one whit concerned, and which can supply
not one whit of intelligent aid in the determination of the
matters here before you and unless, sooner or later, counsel
is required to hew to the line of reasonable relevancy, it
seems to me that we are inviting, for what purpose I know
not, & public statement by Mr. Stewart on any subject that
may appear to him to be desirable, incorporated into this
record for what purpose, I repeat, we can only conjecture,
but which certainly can have not the remotest relevancy to
what we are here attempting to determine. I most respect-
fully renew my objection to the irrelevancy of the question.

MR. STEWART: If the Hearing Officer please, I
have stated my purpose in connection with the last objection,
which, 1f I may say so, 1s a good deal more than my friend
has on a nmmber of the exhibits which he has introduced here
which have no apparent relevance to the case. I submit it
is of the same character as the last one.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Stewart, the Hearing
Officer feis that he has permitted you wide latitude this

morning. In some cases the relevancy was not quite clear,

but this question does seem to be outside that latitude, and,
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therefore, the Hearing Officer will sustain the obJjection.

MR. STEWART: Having in mind, sir, that the ques-
tion relates to knowledge acquired by this witness in the
negotiations in which he‘participated in 1940 and about which
he has testified on direct ¢xamination. That 1s the 1limit
of my question.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Stewart, I don't recall
that the witness sald anything about this particular in-
quiry. I wonder 1f you would read the question again?

(Question read by the reporter.)

THE HEARING OFFICER: I sustain the obJjection.

BY MR. STEWART:

Q Did you, in connection with those negotiations, ac-
quire knowledge as to the activities of the Bureau of Internal
Revenue against Bank of America, upon 1ts tax returns for many
years?

MR. TOWNSEND: Same obJjection.

MR. STEWART: I am trying to find out about what
knowledge the witness acquired in the negotiations concerning
which he has testified on direct, sir.

THE HEARING OFFICER: I sustain the obJjection.

BY MR. STEWART:

Q You certainly acquired knowledge, did you not, Mr.
Eccles, in those negotlations about the controversy with the

Comptrolleris office, as that was the direct subject of those
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) | negotiations, wasn't 1t?
2 A Yes, in those conferences I got some knowledge of

3 || the controversy.

4 Q And that was a controversy which was being --

5 MR. STRWART: Strike that, please.

6 BY MR, STEWART:

7 Q That controversy arose out of contentions presented

8 || by the Comptroller’s office which was under the Jurisdiction
9 || of Secretary Morgenthau, didn't 1t?

10 A I don't recall.

" Q  Didn't you tell us the other day that Secretary

12 || Morgenthau took a personal interest and particlipation in the
13 | negotiation and settlement of that controv.ersy?

14 A He was not present personally. The Division of
15 || the Treasury and the Assistant Secretary of the Treasury,

16 }l under whose direction the Comptrolleris office came, particl-
17 || pated in the conference. As I understood the matter, the

ig || Ggeneral Counsel was (eneral Counsel of not only the Treasury
19 ibut of all of 1ts bureaus and the Comptrolleris office was
20 jone of the Bureaus which came directly under the General

21 §Counsel of the Treasury, so the assistant General Counsel,
22 iMr. Ed Foley, and Mr. Dan Bell, the assistant secretary,

23 | participated in those con’:ences.

24 Q Mr. Morgenthau did participate personally, did he

25 inot, at one conference you attended during that period, in
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which he made the suggestion that perhaps public funds should
be withdrawn from the Bank of America because of his fear
for thelir safety?

A I don't recall that Iir. Morgenthau ever made that
suggestion. I do recall that he sat in one or two confer-
ences, in particular the first conference that was held with
reference to the Transamerica and particularly the Bank of
America, which matter had been brought to his attention by
Mr. Leo Crowley, who is the Chalrman of the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation and Mr. Crowley was also present at that
conference and Mr. Marshall Diggs who was the acting Comp-
troiller, Mr. O'Connor, the Comptroller, being in California,

in an effcrt to get the nomination for the Governorship.
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Q And was Mr. Jesse Jones of the R.F.C. also present
at that meeting?

A I don't believe Mr. Jones was,

Q Didn't you attend a meeting at which Mr. Jones
and some or all of these other people were present at about
the fime under discussion, at which the question of with-
drawal of public funds was brought up by Mr. Morgenthau and
then withdrawn by him when he was reminded by Mr. Jones that
they were fully secured by Government bonds?

A I don't remember ever attending a meeting at
which Mr. Jones was present. It may be that such a meeting
was held and Mr. Ranson may have attended for the Board, but
I don't recall the meeting that you seem to have in mind.

Q By the way, Mr. Eccles, you did have a good deal
to do with Secretary Morgenthau during that period, didn't
you?

A I wouldn't say that I had a great deal to do with
him.

Q Well, you disagreed with him rather constantly
and openly on fiscal matters generally from 1938 on, didn't
you?

A Not always. I did have some disagreements. At
least, I would prefer to put it this way: That the Open

Market Committee, of which I was the Chairman, did not

agree with the Treasury and, being the Chairman, I had the
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1 |jcontacts to make with the Treasury. It was largely in

2 jeonnection with fiscal policy and public debt management
3Muhere the disagreements developed.

1 Q I suggest to you, sir, that your disagreecments

s {{with Secretary Morgem thau at the time contributed in no

¢ {amall degree to the gratification you expressed to Mr. L. M.
7 1Giannini in your letter to him of March 22, 1940, and your

g teontribution toward the successful conclusion of the nego-~

s {|tiations which resulted in the termination of the charges
10 || therefore presented by the Comptroller's office against the

11 i Bank of America.

12 Would you ogree with that suggestion?
13 A I would not agree with it at all.
14 Q What was your opinion of Secretary Morgenthau as

i5 | @ banker at that time?
16 MR. TOWNSEND: Objected to, may it please the
17 {| Hearing Officer; completely irrelevant and immaterial in this

18 || case and beyond the scope of proper cross examination.

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: Objection sustained.
20 I BY MR. STEWART:
21 Q Now, I should like to ask you some questions about

22 | the subsequent holding company bills which you have sponsored
23 § before the Congress, Mr. Eccles. I believe you claim to be
24 || an expert on bank holding companies, don't you?

25 A Well, I should know somefiing about them. However,
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I have been away from the operation of one for about 14
years.

As Chairman of the Board, in connection with the
testimony that I have had to give from time to time in con-
nection with bank holding companies that are under consider-
ation, I have given a good deal of thought and study to the
various types of bills,

Q I would just like to direct your attention to one
brief excerpt from your testimony on the hearings on Senate
Bi1l 829 before the committee on Banking and Currency of
the United States Senate, on June 11, 1947, as it appears at
Page 170 of the transcript of those hearings, and ask you 1if

it isn't a fact that you testified at that time: "I would

| Just like to say to the Committee that, of course, this bill

will apply to all companies equally, Whether they happen
to be companies tht I had a former conneetion uith, the
First Security Corporation, which is a bank holding company,
and I think I possibly know as much about bank holding
companies as anyone, because I organized one of the first
in this country and operated it for quite a number of years.
Therefoe, I claim to be an expert, not because of any theory,
but because of practical experbnce."
Did you give that-testimony, s8ir?
A Yes.

Q' Do you want to change that in any way at this time?
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A No, I won't change 1t.

Q Now, in the 1light of your expert, practical ex-
perience, you have recommended several different pleces of
legislation dealing with the subject of bank holding com-
panies, haven’t you, Governor?

A No. There was one bill that was sent up there that
did not go with the recommendation of the Beard., It was what
we termed a "catch-all" bill that we had 1little or no hope
or expectation of getting it considered, but at least we feolt
that 1t would be a basis for a development of bank holding
company legislation.

MR. STEWART: I will ask the Stenographer to mark
this paper for identification. I believe that 18 Respondentfs
Exhibit 2 for 1dentification.

(The document referred to was
marked Respondent's Exhibit 2
for identification.)

BY MR. STEWART:

Q I show you the paper which has been marked Respond-
ent's Exhibit 2 for identification, which is H. R. 2776, intrc-
duced by Mr. Spence in the Houze of Rerregentativas om Moveh
26, 1545, and ask you if that isn't the first bank holding
company legislation which wag introduced with your approval?

A I am unable to ldentify i1t without the Board's

consideration of the matter. I would have to bring so many

bills and I don't recall the dates or the substance of the
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1 iivarious bills that were introduced. I would have to review
2 ithe record with reference to the history of bank holding

s joompany legislation.

4 Q Just so that you may do that, and without wasting
s itime at the present time, sir, I will tell you that it is ny
s junderstanding that that bill, which I have Just handed you,

was Iintroduced by Mr.~--rather, was introduced by Chairmen

s {|Spence of the House Committee on Banking and Currency at the
o jjdirect request of Mr. Dreibelbis, whom you have previously
10 || identified as counsel for the Board, and with the approval

{
11 lof the Board, including yourself.
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1 MR. STEWART: Passing further questions on that for
2 | the moment, I will ask the reporter to mark as Respondent's

3 | Exhibit 3 for identification this paper.

4 (The document referred to was
marked Respondent‘’s Exhibit No.

5 3 for identification.)

6 | MR. STEWART: It is entitled "H. R. 6225", intro-

7 i duced by Mr. Spence in the House of Representatives April 30,

g {1946, and I will ask you if you recall whether that 1is the

9 || second of the bank holding company bills which was introduced

10 || with your approval.

" THE WITNESS: I would have to check it to ascertain
12 | whether that 1s true or not.

13 MR. STEWART: Granting you an opportunity to do that,
14 | sir, I will ask the stenographer to mark as Respondent’s

15 || Exhibit 4 for identification this paper.

16 (The document referred to was marked
Respondent 's Exhibit No. 4 for

17 identification.)

18 BY MR. STEWART:

19 Q Which is entitled "Committee Print No. 2, June 13,

20 | 1947, S. 8297 and introduced by Mr. Tobey on March 10, 1947,
21 | this apparently being an amended version which was prepared
22 | by that dste. I don't have the earlier one, and I will
23 |laslt you 1f that is the third of the bank holding company

24 1b1lls which was introduced with your approval.

25 A I would have to check that, but, as I recall, H.R,
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6225, the one that was introduced by Mr. Spence in the Second
Session of the 79th Congress, was not taken up by that
Congress and, of course, a bill dies in a Committee wvhen the
Congress adjourns., It 1s my recollection that this bill --

Q Referring now to 3. &5:G?

A That 1s right. It 1s very similar to the other --
to H. R. 6225, and was a reintroduction of this bill. Cer-
tainly, they ave very likely, practically the same bill.

Q I would 1like to ask you during the recess to
familliarize yourself with those, because there are some ques-
tions along that line that I want to ask you after the
luncheon recess, but before we get to that, 1sn’'t it a fact
that you and Mr. Townsend, as counsel for the Bojrd, have,
since June, 1S47, collaborated with Senator Tobey and others
in the preparation of an amended version of S.829, which was
the last bill I handed to you?

A There were a good nunber of gmendrents cuggested
to S.829 to the Committee and there were other amendments
which had been called to the attention of the Committee or
to the attention of Mr. Tobey who was Chalrman of the Com-
mittee by Senztor Downey whom we assumed represented the
Transamerica people, at least he was representing, purported
to represent their views, and the amebdments proposed were

amendments which they suggested. One of those amendments --

MR. STEWART: If the Hearing Officer please, bhafore
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t i the witness goes any further, he has made a suggestion here

2 | that a Sergtor of the United States represented a private

3 j party and I move to strike out that statement from the record
4 { as not being factual, not being hased upon any claim of fact

5 || and rather insulting and irrelevant.

6 MR. TOWNSEND: May it please the Hearing Officer,

7 i I cannot help but chuckle as I think of -~

8 MR. STEWART: You can chuckle all yaawant --

4 MR. TOWNSEND: -~ Mr. Stewart's concern in the

10 | 11ght of his apparently continuous, although so far unsuccess-
1 i ful, efforts to suggest that the witness in this case, a public
12 || official, like Senator Downey; should represent a private

13 | interest in connection with his public affairs. I may say

4 |l further, in answer to Mr. Stewart’s statement, that I donft

15 | read into Mr. Eccles! remarks the apparent insinuation that

16 | Mpr, Stewart seams to find there. I think if you will consult
17 } the records, you will fihd that therwitneas said that 1t was

18 || relt that Senator Downey had suggested these amendments as

19 i pepresenting the views of Transamerica Corporation. I would

20 | consider that Senator Downey was hardly a fit pemson to repre-
21 || gent the State of California and its peoples and interests

22 | 4in the United States Senate if Senator Downey did not under-
23 | take to represent the points of view of those persons with

24 {whom he 1is most 1likely to be acquainted and so it seems that

25{ on two grounds, at least, Mr. Stewart®s remarks ae out of

Digitized for FRASER
http://fraser.stlouisfed.org/
Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

23

24

25

Digitized for FRASER
http://fraser.stlouisfed.org/
Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis

791

place.
MR. STEWART: Of course, counsel has put an entire-

ly different implication from that obviously intended by the

witness and I move to strike the remarks as unresponsive to

the question.

Incldentally, that 1s a motion that could have

i been made numerous times in thls examination, but I have re-

frained from doing 1t because I wanted to glve the witness

| full latitude.

THE HEARING OFFICER: The Hearing Officer will ask
that the reference to Senator Downey be stricken from the
record.

MR. STEWART: 1Is this an appropriate time for the
luncheon recess?

THE HEARING OFFICER: We will recess untll 2
ofcloak.

(Whereupon at 12:30 ot'clock p. m.,‘the hearing

was recessed, to reconvene at 2 ofclock p. m.)
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L APTERNOON SESSION

2 (Whereupon, at 2 o’clock p. m., the hearing was
3 | resumed pursuant to the recess.)

4 THE HEARING OFFICER: Will the hearing come to

5 || order, please?

6 Mr. Stewart, will you proceed?
7 MR. STEWART: Yes, sir.
8 MARRINER S. ECCLES

9 |the witness on the stand at the time of the recess, resumed
10 | the witness stand and testified further as follows:
" CROSS EXAMINATION (Resumed)

12 BY MR. STEWART:

13 Q Just before the luncheon recess, Governor Eccles,
i+ lwe had identified three holding bills, H. R. 2776, introduced
15 | om March 26, 1945, H. R. 6225, introduced on 2pril 30, 1946,
16 land S. 829, introduced on March 3, 1947. Do you have those
17  three bills in front of you now?

18 A I do.

19 Q

~

Have you since the luncheon adjournment been able
20 | to refresh your recollection that those are the three holding
2] | company bills whichwere introduced into the Congress with

22 | your approval and upon your recommendation?

23 A I have.
24 Q  And that is the fact?
25 A That 1s the fact.

Digitized for FRASER
http://fraser.stlouisfed.org/
Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis



LY

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Digitized for FRASER
http://fraser.stlouisfed.org/
Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis

asc2 793
Q Each of those bills imposed upon bank holding com-

panlies, or would have, 1f it had been enacted into law, cer-
tain restrictions upon their operations which are not now in
the lew, didn't 1t?

MR.TOWNSEND: Just a minute. At this point, may 1it
please the Hearing Officer, I want to interpose an obJjection
to any line of questioning concerning the provisions of hold-
ing company bills which have been introduced in the Congress
by the Board. I think that it is completely beyond the
scope of proper cross e¢xamination, has no relevance to any
of the issues here presented, and that 1t certainly is not

asking too much to request you to require of counsel for

‘Respondent an expression as to the relevancy of these partic-

ular matters.

MR. STEWART: I will be glad to give such an ex-
pression, sir. Governor Eccles has devoted a good part of
his testimony here to a statement as to his personal feelings
in this situation and to his lack of prejudice and bias,with
which he was charged, against Transamerica Corporation. I
propose by this line of questions to demonstrate a very impor-
tant element and exhibition of that preJudice and bias.

MR. TOWNSEND: May I request, Mr. Hearing Officer,
that the generalities which counsel has announced do not

indicate how the questioning concerning the bills, which he

has had the witness identify, could possibly bring suc¢h a con-
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clusion to fruition. I think until we have an expression on

that subject that it 1s appropriate for me to object, and 1

:do object to the questions on the subject, unless there can

be made to appear a reasonable likelihood thatwhat Mr. Stewart
has stated to you can be substantiated.

MR. STEWART: I think 1t will appear as the ques-
tions developn.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Do you care to make a state-
ment on that, Mr. Stewart, in answer tohis question?

MR. STEWART: I think, sir, the only way that can
be made to appear 1s by the analysis of the provisions of the
b11ls and the changes that were made in them and a showlng
by the witness as to the sponsorship of those changes and the
reasons for the sponsorship. I expect to show through that
line of questions this witness' personal blas and prejudice
in connection with those changes.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Would you elaborate a little,
Mr. Stewart, on just how you consider this to be relevant
to this particular hearing?

MR. STEWART: As I said before, sir, one of the im-

portant issues presented by the voluntary appearance of Mr.
Eccles here is the question of his bias and prejudice in this
case. It 1s my intention and my expectation, by this line of

questions, among others, to demonstrate the fallacy of the

position that he has taken on direct examination in that re-
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gard and, as I pointed out yesterday, in reference toc the
statement that was made by him to the press at the time he

announced hia disqualification, he voluntarily invited cross

;examnetion along that line. I think to shut 1t off at this

point would be mosi inconslstent with the whole purpose of his

appearance asg announced by him,

MR. TOWHSEND: May 1t please the Hearing Officer,

I have already stated in respect of Mr. Eccles® gtatement to
the press that that stotement subjects him to svery possible,
legitinate cross examinatlion that anyone in a similar posi-
tion, to which he now finds himself placed, should be sub-
Jected. It does not, however, I most earnestly suggest,

open the door to Mr. Stewart'!s rambling investigations, cover-
ing a whole hoat of subjects, which are not relevant to this
case and concerning which, as to this particular question,

he has not yet answered your question, how it can be material
in demonstrating Mr. Eccles'? bias.

Let me Jjust 11lustrate that for a moment. He says
that by examining this witness on provisions of bills intro-
duced at the request of the Board before the Congress concern-
ing the regulation of bank holding companies, that he will
be enabled to show a personal blas and prejudice on the part
of this witness against Transamerica Corporation. Yoare
not only the Hearing Officer in this case, sir, you are also

a member of the Board. I am not asking you to draw upon your
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information to supply factual omissions from this file, but

I am asking you to draw upon your experience as a member of
the Board to ask yourself, in fairness to a consideration of
my obJjection, whether any statement thus far has been made by
Mr. Stewart which suggests to you, as the Hearing Officer

in this case, that there could be any content in those bills
which could demonstrate the fact.

MR. STEWART: Of course, sir, I haven't yet been
permitted to ask the gquestions. It seems to me that counsel’s
obJjection is most premature.

MR. TOWNSEND: You have asked for an expression.

MR. STEWART: To ask me to outline all the ques-
tions in advance, is a most improper interference with cross
examingtion and an 1llustration of repeated efforts of the
counsel for the Board to repeat this attempt regardless of
fairness, equity and Jjustice in the situation.

THE HEARING OFFICER: The Heaing Officer will

recess the hearing for ten minutes, so that he may confer

with his courel.

(Recess taken.)
THE HEARING OFFICER: Will the hearing come to

order, please?

For the last two or three days I have been concerned

.by the type of questions and objections raised by counsel on

both sides. After reviewlng the matter carefully with my
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Llegal advisor, I wish to read the following statement into
the record:

"I would like to make a brief comment for the in-
formatinn and guidance of counsel. It 1s directed to the ques-
tion brought out by both counsel as to the latitude to be
permitted on cross examination. In an administrative proceed-
ing such as this, where technical rules of evidence are not
necessarily binding, where hearings are to be held at inter-
vals in different citles and in which both counsel have
sald that the Board does not have the power to subpoena wit-
nesses, I believe it inevitable to apply the strict rule en-
forced in some jurisdictions, limiting'the cross examination
of a witness to the scope of his direct examination. I bellieve

also 1t would be better to apply themore liberal rule followed

in other Jurisdictions which permits a witness to be cross
examined on any relevant matters, whether or not within the
scope of his direct examination. I would like to emphasize
that relevancy wlill be the guide. Witnesses for both the
Board and the Respondent may, therefore, be cross examined
flaccordingly.

"This, in my opinion, will, in the long run, serve
to expedite the hearings and shorten the record. It will
avoid considerable argument between counsel and it will aild

them in developing all the pertinent facts.

"I would also like to refer again to a statement I
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} | have made before,that my maln purpose in thls hearing 1s to

2 || provide both counsel with a full opportunity to produce all

3 | the relevant facts bearing on the Board's complaint.

4 "In the circumstances, I have reconsidered my rul-
5 || ing sustaining objections to the questions asked Governor

6 | Eccles by counsel for Respondent relating to certain banks in
7 | Arizona at lines 18 to 21 of page 661 of the record. At

8 || 1ines 18 to 21 and on page 666 of the record and lines 4 to

9 | 7 of page 667 of the record, I now vacate those rulings and
10 || overrule the objections referred to. However, I would like

11 jalso to state that counsel for Respondent has been allowed

12 | a very wide latitude over the past two days in the scope of
13  his cross examination of the wibness. Many of the subjects
i4 | covered in this cross examination have been of such a char-
15 acter that the relevance has not been apparent to the Hearing
16 | Officer, particularly in view of the fact that Governor

17 | Eccles voluntarily disqualified himself from participating

18 |in this proceedig. From now on, it seems to the Hearing Officer
19 ithat the scope of the examination should be more clearlyrelated

20 jto the 1ssues of the case and I hope that counsel for

|
21 | Respondent will endeavor to restrict his questlons according-

ly, so that we may get along with the hearing. I do not pro-

pose to limit counsel with respect to any subjects which

24 i geem to me to be reasonably related to this matter, but I

25 Ywill be prepsred tc¢ limit the further cross examinatienwhen
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the questions do not appear to be or are not shown to be of
a proper character. Inmy opinion, the guestion now pending
is not relevant to any issue involved in this case and I,
therefore, sustain the objection."

MR. STEWART: Will you read back the guestion
that led to that ruling?

(Question read by the reporter.)

MR. STEWART: In order that I may be clear in
the procedure that I next follow in this matter, I should
like to inquire of the Hearing Officer whether the ruling
Just read from his statement relates to anything more
than the particular gquestion. Was it the intent of the Hear-
ing Officer to sustain an obJjection to the generalline of
questions upon holding company limitation or merely upon the

particular questi-~ which was asked.
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1 THE HEARING OFFICER: I specifically sustained

2 [the objection on this question and I think the statement

3 I read 18 a statement that is quite clear and I hope, 1f you
4 {read 1t again, perhaps you will be quite clear yourself.

5 MR. STEWART: I interpret it then, sir, unless I

¢ ljam otherwise adyised, as relating to the one question and I

7 ||will proceed with additional questions.

8 THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Stewart, this is not

9 {irelated to a single question, the statement I read. This 1B
10 irelated to the future conduct on the part of both counsel

11 jjduring the course of this hearing.

12 MR. STEWART: Then, sir, I shall proceed with the
13 next question.

4 BY MR. STEWART:

15 Q Will you refer, please, to H. R. 2776, which is one
16 | of the bills you have in your hand, which you have identified
17 || a8 having been introduced with your approval, and ask you

18 | 1f 1t 18 not the fact that that bill would have imposed a

19 || requirement which, in practical application, would have been
20 | applicable to Transamerica Corporation, making it unlawful
21 || for that company to retain bank stocks acquired subsequent
22 | to December 31, 19042, or in other words, for a period of two
23 | and a qQuarter years before the bill was introduced.

24 MR, TOWNSEND: I renew my objection on the same

28 || ground, that any examination of bank holding company
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) llegislation 18 irrelevant to these proceedings and certainly
2 {{within scoper of the Hearing Officer's recent statement and

3 {{obviously should be prohibited.

4 THE HEARING OFFICER: The objection is sustained.

5 MR. STEWART: If the Hearing Officer please, the

¢ || 1ast ruling makes 1t apparent that it was the Hearing Officer's
7 iintent to sustain objections to my inquiring into this wit-

8 iness' intent in introducing holding company legislation, in

9 | spite of the fact that he testified at some length on direct
10 || examination as to the relationship between that legislation

1 land the intent of this proceeding.

12 I, therefore, have no alternative at this time but
13 || to make a detalled offer of proof upon this subject which I
14 | should say, before I begin 1it, I'regard as depriving me of

15 || an important right of cross examination., I am unaware of any

16 | procedure, administrative, Jjudicial or otherwise, which per-

17 fmits a counsel to object to cross examination on the ground

18 || that the questions must be stated in advance, but the Hearing
19 1 Officer's ruiing puts me in the position where I must do that
20 | unless there 18 a change at this time in it before I proceed

21 {{with the offer of proof.

22 Let me Just call the attention of the Hearing Officer
23 || to a brief excerpt from the witness® testimony on direct

24 | examination at Page 590, Line 22, He said: "Of course, 1t

25 | always had in mind"--that 1s, the Board always had in mind--the
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question of adequate holding company legislation that would
tend to curb further expansion by bank holding companiles,
except with the approval or consent of banking authorities,
but the question of dealing with the situation as 1t existed
at that time, they had not considered, and- 23 has been brought
out here, the supervisory agencies had agreed upon a program
to use such influences as they had to prevent further expan-
sion, but until this time, there had besn no other consider-
ation:,"

If the Hearing Officer please, I should like to
ask once more, before I lose this valuagble right of cross
examination, for the opportunity to put to the witness, in
the normal manner, these questions relating to a subject
directly in issue, namely, the witness' efforts to curb Trans-
amerlca Corporation through legislation and otherwise.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Stewart, I would Just 1like
to say that the ruling that I read still stands.

MR. STEWART: 1In view of that ruling, to which, of
couse, I have an automatie exception, I must proceed with
my offer of proof and I want it to appear clearly on the
record that I willl regard this, and will so urge in any
Judicial review, that it 1s a reversible error in this pro-
ceeding to require me to do this,

I offer to prove by this witness by further questions

on cross examination of the general line to which objection
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d &as been sustained, first, that the bill which has been

identified as H. R. 2776, Respondent's Exhibit 2 for iden-

tification, which was recommended by the Board and parti-

'eularly by this witness, would have made it unlawful for a
company to retain bank stocks acquired subsequent to

December 31, 1942; second, that that provision would have

required by ex post facto legislation the divestment by

Transamerica Corporation of stocks of banks at which this

proceeding 1s directed; third, that the facts will show that

Transamerica Corporation was the only corporation in existence

at that time which would have been substantially affected

by such provision and that this witness was aware of it

when he introduced that type of discriminatory legislation.
Next, I offer to prove by this witness that this

same billl contained a provision which was carefully drawn in

such manner as to exclude from 1ts operation the companies

in which he and his family were interested, as developed in

the test¢imony this morning; namely, Eccles Investment Company

and i1ts interests in banks and other corporations, while it

jwould be specifically applicable to Transamerica Corporation

and its holdings in the same Federal Reserve District.
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Yext, I offer to prove in this same line by this
witness on cross examination that when this wiltness introduced

a new bill, tle second of which was 1identifled by me, namely,

f H.R. 6225, introduced on April 30 of 1946, only 13 months

after the introduction of the first bill, 1t was accompanied
by a statement by the Beoard, explaining why it had been
substituted in place of the earlier bill and that whereas

the earlier bill would have contaimed a provision making 1t
applicable in some respects to the Eccles Holding Company,
not irn the respect I have already mentioned, but in some
other respects,}sould have made it applicable to Transamerica
Corporation to pevent the ownership by Transamerica at the same
time of bank stocks and non-bank Stocks e The bill which was
then substituted, 15 months after the earlier bill, would have
.excluded from the effect of that provision in the future

as well as in the past Eccles Investment Company and its
interests.

Next, I offer to show by this witness on cross
examination that when S. 829, the third of the bills identl-
fied as having been approvec and Sponsored by this witness
and which has been identifled as Respondent's Exhibit 4 for
identification, was imtroduced in 1947, it preserved substan-
t1ally the same situation as to who was included and who was

excluded from the originmal bill,

In other words, preserving the discrimination against
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1 || Transamerica Corporation and in favor of the Eccles Investment
2 || Company.

3 I further offer to prove by this witness that in explain-
4 || ing the provisions of S. 829 to the Senate Committee on May

5 | 26, 1947, this witness in his personal testimony told the

6 | Senate comittee that the definition contained in that bill,

7 | which 18 the definition that I have referred to as being

8 || discriminatory in character, was, and I quote from his

9 | testimony, "Derived in large part from the definition of a

10 || holding company adopted by Congress when it enacted the Public
11 || U111ty Holding Company Act in 1935."

12 Next I offer to prove by him on cross examination

13 || that he followed up that explanation in a reappearance before
14 || the committee, approximately two weeks later, on June 11,

15 | 1947 by stating, and I quote, "AS pointed out in my previous

16 || testimony, the defimltions and exemption provisions of

17 || Section 3 are pattermed upon ldentical provisions in the

18 || Public Ut1lity Holding Company Act of 1935."

19 I further offer to prove by his testimony on cross
20 || examination that he did not explain to the Senate committee

21 {at that time that the Public Utility Holding Company definition
22 || 4ncludad the words "any person" who might be found to exercise
23 || "acontrolling influence" over a holding company, while the

24 1 p111 which he was sponsoring was limited to "any company”

25 | found to exercise a controlling influence over two or more
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y | banks and that he did not explain that under his bill, in

2 I contrast to the language of the Public Utllity Holding Compay
3 I Act, a person might exercise a controllng influence oveyr the
¢ | managenment of 2 bunk holding company and still not, himselfl,
5 | be 8 holding conpany. He did not explain the discriminatory
¢ 1 effeet of that provision agalnst Transamerica Corporation and
7 || in favor of his own intarests.

8 I further offezr to prove, by the testimony ol this
o || Witness on oross exemination, if I am not intor fered with,
10 || that tais dlstinetion was, first brought o the attention

1 || of the Ssnate committese by telegram, dated Juma 10, 1O47 aad
12 | a sudsaquent letier from Mr. L. M. Gianninl to Senator Tobey,
13 || dated Juns 18, 1947 and that this witness urote a letter %o

14 | which weference has already been made hera today to Semator

15 | Tobey under date of June 13, 1947 in which he characterized

16 || Mr. Glannini's telegram to which I have previously ref@$red

17 a8 " a deliberate and mallcious falsehood.”

18 I further offer to prove by tha questions to this

19 || witness on cross examination, if they were not improperly

20 || interfored with, that S. 829, the bill last mentioned, con-

21 |l talned a provision requiring bank holding companies to dis-

22 *pose of their interests in non-banking organizations within

23 la pericd of two years, that that provision is the one commonly
24 | refarred to as the segregation requirement and yet that

25 i yndey the definition of a holding company contalned in that
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1 | state, Eccles Investment Company, even though it had 44 per
2 || cent of the voting stock of a bank holding company, namely,

3 || Pirst Security Corporation, would not itself be a holding

4 | company and, therefore, would not have been required to

5 || divest i1tself of its holdings in non-banking assets,

3 I further offer to prove in the same manner, if not
7 | improperly interfered with, that the Eccles Investment Com-

8 | pany, under that bill, would have been put in a superior

9 || position in competing with Transamerica Corporation in the

10 | same Federal Reserve District and in a manner prohibited to
11 || Transamerica Corporation and held out by this witness

12 || to the Congress as a dangerous practice.

13 I further offer to prove by him and in the same

4 || manner, if not improperly interfered with, that he pressed

15 | very hard with all the means at his command to get that bill
16 || passed by Congress, that he filed extensive statements before
17 || the Congress and even came back later to answer arguments on
18 | the bill after other witnesses had appeared, and that upon

19 i his reappearance before the committee of the Congress he

77 20 | testified that the definition provisions were patterned on

29 21 derinit/lggovisions of the Public Utility Holding Company Act
22 { of 1935.
2 I further offer to prove by him on cross examination

2 1 1n this same line, if not interfered with, that in seeking

25
support for the passage of this legislation aimed at
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Pransamerica Corporation he caused Mr. Townsend, then
Agsistant (General Counsel for the Board, and now the
Solicitor in this procesding, to solicit support from banking
organizations in various parts of the United States and
particalarly in Californla, from the competitors of Bank of
America, and particularly from the organization in that
distrist lnown as The Independent Bankers Assoclation of the
Twelfth Federal Resewve Distriet, that thils witness, as a
result of those developments, took particular pains to point
out to the Senate committee that the bill had the support of
the Independent Bankers Assoclatlion of the Twelfth Federal
Reserve District.

I further offer to prove by him on cross examination,
if not improperly interfered with, that ha testified on the
record before the Senate Cormmittes on June 11, 1947, at page
165 of the transcript as follows:

"I might say that the stronget supporters of this
bill are the non-member state banks. Mr. DuBols appeared be-
fore your committee the other day, representing the ingependent
bankers, the small independent bankers as one of the strongest
advocates of this bill., Mr. DuBois is certainly nobody's fool."

I further offer to prove that the same Mr. DuBois
who 18 referred to ir that testimony and whose testimony was
given the blessing and approval of this witness in the manner

indicated, referred to the Board of Governors of the Federal
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1 | Reserve System as "Mr. Townsend's organization".

2 I further offer to prove by this witness on cross

3 || examination in this same line, if not improperly interfered

4 || with, that Mr. DuBois' statement as to his experience with

5 || the Board of CGovernors and his ability to get helpful informa-
6 | tion from the Board of Governors as a member of the

7 {| Independent Bankers Association,so-called, of Sauk Centre,

8 || Minnesota, 18 in marked contrast to the attitude exhibited

9 || by the Board in this proceeding and exhibited by the officers
10 || of the Board in this proceeding and by the S8olicitor of the
11 || Board in this proceeding in refusing to give to me or to

12 || Transamerica Corporation any information whatsoever about

13 || the Board's activities or even its charges in this case,

14 || although repeatedly demanded.

15 I further offer to prove in this same line of

16 || questions on cross examination, if not improperly interfered
17 {{ with, that this testimony of the witness, Mr. Eccles, before
18 || the Senate committee and his general efforts pressing for

19 || the enactment of that legislation was one illustration of

20 {this further determination to impose his will upon Transamerica
2! | Corporation as to how it should run 1ts business regardless
22  of the lack of any legal requirements,that it subject itself
23 i to his will as developed yesterday on his examination.

24 I further offer to prove by him in the same manner,

25 |Af not interfered with, that his testimony before the Senate
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: || committee gave direct evidence of his personal animus against

2 | Transamerica Corporation, particularly in the following remarks,
3 | which appear at page 47 of the Senate transcript -- sorry,

4 || this 13 page 22 of the report of the Senate committee, and

5 | a quotation from this witness, if the Hearing Officer please,

6 || "Whik the managements of the great majority of the important

7 || bank holding company systems have sought the Board's views, if

s | not 1t3 approval, on proposed bank acquisitions, there is ons

9 || case where a holdhg company management has openly defied the

10 1| Board in 1ts attempt £o halt am unbridled bank expansion

i1 | prgram. I refor to the Transamerica Corporation with its

12 || vast group of comtrolled banks in Arizona, California, Wewvada,

13 || Oregon and<Waahington. The Transamerica management has publicly

14 | sought to justify itself om the ground that Congress, by with-

15 | holding from the Board the direct powsr to curb such expansion,
16 | has thoreby indicated its approval of Transamerica plicles. "

17 I further offer to prove by him that in spite of

18 || that statesment and that insinuation and innuendo as to

19 || improper action on the part of Transamerica Corporatiocn, the

20 | fact was at the time that neiher*the witmess nor the Board

21 | had any power cr legal authorization from Congress to attempt
22 i to halt, as he put it, the acquisition of bank stocks by

23 || Transamerica Corporation.

24 I further offer tc prove by the witness that on

2 I the occasion of ome of his trips to Utah, about which he has
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1 || testified, during the period between the introduction of the

2 || £irst bill, to which reference has been made, and which con-

3 || tains certain restrictive provisions applicable to Eccles

4 || Investment Company and his own interests and the introduction
5 || of the second bill, which removed those provisions and affixed
6 || the great discrimination between his interests and those of

7 || Transamerica to which I have referred, that during that

8 | interval and during his trip to Utah, he had a conversation

9 || with his brother, George Eccles, and with counsel for the

10 | First Security Corporation in Utah and that during the course
11 || of thet discussion it was brought to his attention that the

12 | £irst bill introduced might be embarrassing to him and to

13 || his own interests and they strongly recommended that it be

14 | changed and that it was that conversation and development

15 || which led to the introduction of the second bill, bringing

16 || about the discrimination I have referred to.

17
18
i9
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10
1 I further offer to prove by this same 1line of

2 | questions on cross examination, if not improperly interfered
3 (| with, that this witpess testified before the Senate Jommittee,
4 lat the hearings held in May and June of 1947, on S729, as

5 || follows, at Page 23 of the transcript of those hearings:

6 "Senator Buck: Did they"--referring o Trans-

s | america Corporation--"not have to get your peraission, F.D.I.C.,
s | the Comptroller of the Currency, if any, Natlonal Banks, to
9 || open other branches?

10 "Mr. Eccles: Yes, they do with reference to the

11 || branch2s, yes, that 1s correct.

12 "Senator Fulbright: But not to buy a bank?

13 "Mr. Eccles: Or to buy the ussets of a bank and
14 | even to get branches. There are a great many permits: that
15 || have been gilven in the past. If these standards had been

16 || required by the Comptroller of the Currency, le never could
i7 | have given permits to establish the branches. There are 2
18 || lot of these permits that were given when I know the Board
19 || certainly did not feel favorably toward it at all, but the
20 || Comptroller had unlimited discretion and power to grant the
21 lbranches."

22 I further offer to show by this line of questions

23 || and other simllar references to his previous testimony, thi

24 | hls testimony in this proceeding on direct examination as to

25 | the complete unanimity and attitude on the part of the bank
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regulatory agencies was not true and was, in fact, false, and
2 ithat thee has been great difference of opinion between the

5 lbank regulatory agencies as to the propriety of permitting

+ |Transamerica Corporation and Bank of America to acquire

s ladditional baniks and open additional banking ofrfices to meet

¢ ithe needs of the people of Calirornia during this period of

7 population expansion there, which is unparalieiled by any other
g {{situation in the United States; that Mr. Eccles'’ own opposition
9 |to that and his leadership of this Board in opposition to

10 | that effort on the part of Transamerica Corporation and Bahk
1 [|of America to think ahead and to take care of the needs of

12 | the people was blinded by bilas and prejudice and was contrary

13 || to the thinking of the other agencies in the recent years.

14 I further offer to prove by this witness that the

1s || introduction of the so-called segregation reguirement, reiating
16 | to a requirement that Transamerica Corporation, in contrast

17 | to Eccles investment Company, be required to divest itself

18 | of non-banking interests, was a policy fostered in prejudice
19 || and bilas and having no foundation in reason; that that policy
20 | 18 absolutely contrary to the well recognized virtues of

21 || @ policy of diversification of investments as a factor of

22 || strength in any investment program, and as a factor enabling
23 | bank holding companies to come to the support of the banks

24 || in which they have interests in times of stress.

25 I further ofrfer to prove in the same manner that
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t | the sole reason that has been urged upon the Congress and

2 | the sole reason that this witness can offer an explanation,

3 | other than the bias and prejudice to which I have referred

4 | for enacting a segregation requirement, is that it would be

5 || a means of preventing so-called "up-stream” loans, which

¢ || are loans made by a bank to a2 company of which 1t is a

7 || subsidiary.

8 I further offer to prove in the same manner that

9 || there 18 no need, under the existing law, for any such require-
1o | ment, because the present law hedges about such loans with

1 | restrictiong as to security, which adequately protect against
12 || any imagined evil which might be suggested.

13 I further offer to prove in the same manner that

14 || without losing any of the advantages of a diversified invest-

15 || ment policy made possible under the existing law, all of

16 || the evils or imaginary evliis of up-stream loans could be

iz || eliminated by & simple legislative provision prohibiting

ig || such up-stream loans if deemed in the publlic interest; that
19 [ this witness knew that when he urged the segregation require-
20 |{ment upon Congress and that the urging of that requirement

21 {was nothing more than one more step in his program of forcing
22 Transamerica to do his will, contery to law.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Will counsel proceed.

24 MR. STEWART: I take 1%, slr, that that statement

25 cf offer of proof 1is overruled without objection from the
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ther side.
THE HEARING OFFICER: Tha is correct.

THE WITNESS: Mr. Hearing Officer, I hope the

witness might have something to say.

MR. STEWART: You have been overruled, ¥r. HEcecles,
I wanted to give you every opportunity to say whatever you

desired.

THE WITNESS: I can well understand the desire to
close these statements.

THE HEARING OFFICER: I don't think, Governor
Eccles, your statement will be in order.

THE WITNESS: Weli, I suppose so, I suppose it
wouldn't, I would just like to say that I regret the decision.

MR. STEWART: You don't regret 1t half as much as I
do, sir. My client is the one who has charges against i¢
here.

If the Hearing Officer please, in view of the fact
that this has completely upset and disorganized my planiied
presentation, may I have a few minutes' recess?

THE HEARING OFFICER: We will take a f'ew minutes!

recess or longer.
MR. STEWART: That will be adequate, sir.
(Recess taken,)
I THE HEARING OFFICER: Will the hearing come to order.

I would like to just make one more statement as a
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result of counsel's argument. I would like to state to
the counsel again that I think you have been permitted

a very wide latitude in asking this witness questions on
his alleged personal bias and preJjudice.

You may proceed.

MR. STEWART: I respectfully except to the state-
ment that has just been made on the record.

THE WITNESS: May I make a statement here, Mr.
Hearing Officer?

THE HEARING OFFICER: Very well, Governor.

THE WITNESS: I suppose the witness' personal feel-
ing 18 not to be taken into account, and all I can say is
that--

MR. STEWART: If the Hearing Officer please, if
this is going to be an anawer to the statement--

THE WITNESS: I Just want to say that I regret
that from a personal standpoint I haven't an opportunity to
answer Mr., Stewart's charges.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Very well.

THE WITNESS: But that is a personal matter.

MR. STEWART: Shall I proceced?

THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes.

MR, STEWART: I will ask the Stenographer to mark

as Respondent's Exhibit/%or identification, this paper that

I now hand her.
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(The document referred to was marked
Respondent!s EFxhibit No. 5 for
identification.)

BY MR. STEWART:

Q I hand you the paper which has been marked by
the Stenographer as Respondentis Exhibit No. 5 for identifi-
cation, which is entitled "National Assoclation of Supervisors
of State Banks, Proceedings, Forty-Second Annual Meeting,
Cincinnati, Ohio, September 1943," and which purports to
contailn a quotation of an address delivered by you on that
occasion upon the subject "The Dual System of Banking."

I ask you if you recognize that document as an
accurate report of the speech which you delivered on that
occcasion and as published at that time?

A I assume that it is. Of course, I, without com-
paring this with a copy of the speech or the original speech,
would not know, but I am willing to accept this as a true
copy of the speech, a correct copy of the speech that was
made. I think I did make a speech about that time.

Q Do you recall the general subject matter of the

speech?

A I recall that I appeared at that time, as I told
fhem in that speech, as the devii's advocate.

Q And in that speech you expressed yourself as to
certain facte bearing upon banking regulations and certain

pollcies which you enunciated as being in the interests of
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1 |a sound banking structure, didn't you?

2 A I don't recall. It is rather a long speech and

3 | I certainly don't recall everything that was in that speech.

4 Q I am not asking you, sir, about everything that

5 {fwas 1in 1it.

6 A I don't recall--

7 Q I am asking you about the general purport. I say,

in general, you expressed yourself in that speech as to certain
facts bearing upon the banking regulations and certain policiles
10 .which you enunciated as being in the interest of a sound

11 || banking structure, didn't you?

12 A I don't know. I don't remember.

13 Q May I assume, sir, that the facts stated by you

14 | 1n that speech were accurate?

s A I certainly thought they were accurate, or I

16 || wouldn't have made them.

17 Q And that the policles there expounded by you

18 || represented your honest opinions, based upon your experience

19 || a8 a banker and as a member and chairman of this Board?

20 A Yes, I would say that that was true.

2 Q Upon that foundation, I should like to read into
22 || the record certain excerpts from the speech yo which I have
23 || referred, and then there are certain questions that I wish

24 || t0 ask the witness about the portions I shall read.

25 The first ie from *re pzge that is numbered 38,
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which is the first page of the copy that I have handed you.
The number is up in the upper left-hand corner. Down about
the middle of that page, "Ag public officials responsible for
banking regulation, we all want a strong and successful bank-
ing system. It cannot be strong unless it is successful. We
all favor what we believe to be in the public interest. And
what, 1& fact, best serves the public interest will survive

in the long run.,"

Then, skipping over to the page numbered 41 in the
paper you have in front of you, beginning with the second
full paragraph on that page, "It is not long ago, as time is
measured, that we were predominantly an agricultural nation.
Local communities were relatively self-sustaining. Industries
were largely locally owned and comparatively small. As the
great railroad systems of the nation developed with the west-
ward march, new towns and villages sprang up along the way.
Each had its local, more or less self-contained economic life,
its stores and its banks. This was in a day of relative
scarcity of capital. This was a day when this country %as a
great debtor nation in the world. Interest rates were high.
Too often banks took the risks and the losses that should have
been.borne by risk capital'and not by bank stockholders and
depositors. This era of rapid, steady expanaion faded out with
the advent of the large mergers and consolidations in the

industrial world, with the development of modern transportation
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i

:%and distrlibutive systems and with our change, from the last

)
i}
P

ﬁwar, to the uorld's greatest creditor nation. Atteunts to

3

/halt this march of progress by anti-trust, anti-chain store

:legislation or other statutery pains and penalties have largely

H

rlch i

been in vain. It requires no gift of prophegy to foresee that

M
S

;

ithe same economiec forces will in time compel the banking

gystem to follow a parallel pattern.
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"The answer to the theme question of this session
is not hard to discern, as you look back at the fate of
thousands upon thousands of the small unit banks which once
thrived. By 1921 we had more than thirty thousand commercial
banks in this country, more than 22,000 of them were state
banks, while some eight thousand were national banks. As of
last June 30, the number of state banks had shrunk from 22,000
to about 9,000 and thwe were about 3,000 fewer national banks.
There has been no banking mortality remotely approaching
this sad record in any other nation on earth. The dis-
appearance of more than 13,000 state banks and 3,000 rational
banks as well, whether it be through failure, through merger
or through voluntary liquidation, is eloquent proof that some-
thing was fundamentally wrong with a system that permitted
so large a number even to come into being.

"We have expended more i1h time and money on bank
examination and supervision conducted by at least 52 separate
state and federal agencies than any nation in thse world. It
involves unnecessary waste of manpower at a time like this,

It did not and could not, of itself, protect the depositors,
stockholders or customers of the thousands of banks that went
to the wall, even during the so-called prosperous twenties,
Aside from voluntary liquidations or abéorptigna, nearly ten

thousand state banits with aggrogate deposits of close to five

billion dollars folded up in the twenties and early thirties.
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At the same time, more than two thousand national banks

! with deposits of only slightly less tpan two and a half

billion went to the wall. Most of these were independent

unit banks; banks that survived the twenties and then

| weathered the economic disaster of the early thirties,

were necessarily the strong and not the weak. What saved
them in the end was the avalanche of money poured out by the
Federal Government. The billions in loans and capital
supplied directly to the banks by the RFC and the additional
billions furnished to others through the RFC, the Farm Credit
Administration and the Home Owners Loan Corporation which
made it possible to liquidate the frozen and defaulted credits
held by the banking system.

"As you in this audience kmow, bad management and
other human defects were minor and not major reasons for the
epidemic of faillures. The mortality was greatest through the

twenties among the smaller institutions in the agricultural

| regions. They were the victims of depressed agricultural

conditions. Thousands that managed to come through in the
country and cities only to succumb in the early thirties

were likewise primarily the victims of economic distress and
disaster, with which they could not cope individually and

from which the most diligent supervisory and examination policy
could not save them. Sinc ethe bank holiday the rising price

level has made good the assets of numerous banks that were
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closed then and of many that would not have been reopened had
strict examination policy been uniformly applied. The rising
price level, not deposit insurance, has reducec¢ bank mortality
to a minimum.

"Phe record of bank failures in this, the richest
country on earth, might have been much better, it could hardly
have been much worse, had examinzation and chartering policy
been more restrictive in boom times and if, especially during
depression, runs had been averted by deposit inmsurance.

"However, deposit insurance, whih I strongly favored
at a time when most of the high banking contemporaries regarded
it as a scheme for making good banking pay for the mistakes
of bad bankinz, cannot cure the basic weaknesses. The
attempt to do so at this stage, by making chartering and
examination policy increasingly restrictive,would lead only
to depriving the public of needed banking services in in-
numerable communities. This, in turn, would lead to demands
on government to furnish through its agencles the credit
services that the banks would otherwise supply. It would
mean additional govermment encroachment upon the field of
private banking enterprise. Even today, during the greatest
of all war booms and despite the enormous growth of deposits,
many of the smaller banks are having difficulty in making a
living. It i1s difficult to attract new.capital into the

banking system. Moreover, the process of contraction in number
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of banks is continuing,fortunately through voluntary
liquidation of existing units, unable to operate successfully
and through mergers and consolidations, rather than through
the disastrous process of failures.

"The solution 1s not to be found in more and more
restrictions applied to a basically faulty structure. The
solution lies in & unified system with branch banking. Ve,
alone, have deposit insurance, we need it as long ap the basic
faults of our banking structure remain uncorrected, but the
need for it would disappear and bank failures would be as

rare in our country as they are in other great nations if

‘we wald deal with the causes, Instead of continuing to deal

with the effects of the basic weaknesses in our system.
"Merely to unify the banking system under one
regulatory authority would not be a sufficient remedy. As
I have sought to stress, the problem 1s basically an economic
one. The question 1s, can the small, independent unit banks
expect batter earnings in the future or, of greater importance,
can they provide their communities with adequate credit
facilities and bank services at costs as low as those pre-
vailing elsewhere. In this vast country there are many so-
called credit areas which have a surplus of savings over
local credit and investment needs and others, debtor areas,
where the demand for funds exceeds the local supply, but we

have a banking system which requires, for the sake of
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liquidity that banks in the debtor area send funds to the

oreditor areas, whereas the reverse should be the case,

| 04

: | Farmers and home owners and small businesses are demanding
better and cheaper credit facilities, while banks in their

; | communities hold idle balances in large city banks or buy

(438

low interest-bearing bonds, but to protect their depositors

7 {| they cannot afford the risk of having all of their assets

8 | invested at home, Is there any wonder that borrowers come

9 | to Washington in times of business contraction and ask for new
10 | government credit agencies. I am opposed to govermment-

1t || subsidized competitive agencies taking away business from

12 | the banks, but 18 the widespread outery against farm credit

13 | agencies really basad upon a fear of soclalized credit and

14 | does 1t really attack the cause of the trouble?"
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Then, sklipping over to the next page, another
excerpt that I would like to read, beginning the first full
paragrapn at the top of the page numbered 44:

"Moreover, the vast volume of funds that have already
come or wlll come into existence before the end of the war
presents a competitive situatinn that 1s hardly designed to
result in increased rates and earnings by the banks. These
deposits are owned by insurance companies, mortgage companies,
finance companies, bullding and loan assoclations, business
and industry as well as by many other potential lenders,
individual and cerporate. I have recently seen funds adver-
tised for lending in the mortgage fleld for as long as 40
years at but 4 per cent. Banks must face the necessity of
adapting themselyes to meet such competition and at the same
time, through diversification and sound management, safeguard
the interests of thelr depositors and stockholders.

"I recognize that a banking structure that may best

serve one part of the country may not be adapted to another
part. Generally speaking, in the Eastern States, where larger
diversified banking units predominate and distances are
relatively short, there 1s no such public need for trade

area branch banking as 1s the case in those sectlions of the
country where distances are great and where the banking units
are necessarlly smaller and far less diversified in their

lending and investing activitles.-- indeed, often they are
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ase?
too reliant upon conditions in one or only a few lines of
agriculture or industry.

"I have long felt that limited branch banking 1s the
practical solution of the banking problems confronting those
areas where unit banks cannot succeed. I have never favored
nation-wide branch banking, or its extension over wide areas.
I do feel, however, that 1t should be permitted within
limited trade areas, in no case exceeding the limits of the
immediate area served by the head office or by a branch of a
Federal Reserve Bank. I bellieve that the independent unit
bank shiould be protected, however, by a statutory provision
prohibiting establishment of any branch in a community already
served by a unit bank or by a branch of another bank. The
banking authorities could, of course, permit establishment
of another bank in a community if the need for 1t existed,
but under the provision I have in mind, a branch could
only come into the community by acquiring a unit bank, which
had been in existence for at least five years. Such an ac-
quisition would have to have the consent of the bank
supervisory authorities in order to prevent monopolitsic
tendencies. Under such provisions, a market would be provided
for the stock of a unit bank in case the stockholders de-
sired to sell because of unprofitable operations or for any

other reason. At pregent the owners of the smaller unit banks

are greatly handicepped in having no opportunity,in most cases,
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1 | to dispose of thelr investment, if they wish to do so, at

2z | anything like a satisfactory price.

3 "The smaller unit banks face many difficulties and dis-

4 || advantages as compared with branch banks. The smaller units
5 | are so limited in theilr lending capacity that more and more,

6 || @as business, industrial and agricultural enterprises have

7 (| enlarged, they have had ¢to turn to the banks with large re-

s || sources for thelr financlal requirements. The smaller units

9 {{ do not have the opportunities afforded the larger institutions
10 | to dilversify their lending operations and thus spread the risks.
11 || They cannot afford to employ the speclalized management in

12 | the various lines of lending and investing activity that can
13 | be employed{by the larger banks. They are not able to offer
14 |l the varidy of credit and other services, and they lack stabil-
15 || 1ty and continuity in management, as compared with larger

16 || banks with branches. Accordingly, I see in a branch banking
17 | setup such as I have outlined a practical and loglcal solu-

18 | tion of the problem, both from the standpoint of providing

19 i needed banking services for the public in many communities

20 { and from the standpoint of the interest of the unit banks

21 i themselves.

2 "The present branch banking laws discriminate unfiirly

23 against national banks. While Federal law permits a national
24 {{ bank to have branches in those States where State law permits

25 | branch banking, the Federal law requires the same capitaliza-
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tion for each branch of &' natlional bank. Most State laws
1mpose'no such capltal requirements. If both State and

national banks were put on an equal footing with respect to
branches and the independent unit banks were protected as

I have suggested, 1t seems tome that it msould be in the interest
of all concerned.

"The public interezt and public needs will, I am con-
fident, determine in the end the pattern that will be fol-
Hlowed. It is not the public which has opposed branch banking.
As Senator Glasz said when the subject was being debsed 1in
the Senate some years ago -- and he has had more legislative
experience with banking problems than any man in public life
in our times -~-

"1 The plea against branch banking comes from
bankers and not from people who transact business,not
from people who want to borrow money, not from people
who want to buy credit. It comes from bankers who want
to exclude from thelr pecullar communities anybody else
who wants to sell credit.?

I "And you will perhaps pardon me if I recall to your
mind that the aame 8enator i1s the author of the gtatement that
'the curse of the banking business of thls country 1s the

dual system,'"
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1 One last excerpt from the speech, turning to the next

2 | page numbered 46, the last full paragraph appearing on that

3| page:

4 "My own approach and viewpoint were well expressed by

5 an editorial in the New York Times of July 23, 1936, by

6 Elliott Bell, emphasizing the fact that 'an obvious and

7 i pressing need for fundamental banking reform still existed.
8 If the experience of the depression years showed anything,'

9 this editorial continued, !'it showed the glaring weaknesses
10 inherent in a banking system which 1s conducted under no less
u than fifty different sets of Pederal and local regulations,
12 | with many communities denied by law the services of banking
13 inatitutions equipped with adequate financial resources. The
14 renedies for these weaknesses are unified regulation obtained
15 through membership of all banks in the Federal Reserve System
16 and an extension of the practice of sound branch banking.'"
17 A Good speech.

18 Q It 18, Governor. 1 agree with you. For once, we

19 || have something we can agree on.

20 The policy you advocated for the protection of
21 unit banks during the period of transition from the present
22 | dual banking system to a unified branch system would permit
23 || the development of branch systems only by the purchase of

24 | existing unit banks with rare exceptions, wouldn't 1it?

25 A I think that 1t possibly would,
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2tm Q And that protection 1ls what 1s known as the de

* i novo rule, isntt 1t, Governor?

k] A Yes.

4 Q Is it not & fact that many states which permit
5 branch banking now have or during the pericd involved in

& the complaint in this proceeding, have had the de novo rule

7 in effect?
8 A Just what do you mean by that question?
¢ Q Let me repeat i¢. I think it is clear on 1ts

10 fac®., If it 1sn't, I will try to clarify it.

il Is it not a fact that many states which permit

12 branch banking now have or during the period involved in the
3 complaint in this proceeding have had the de novo rule in

14 effect, the rule which you have Just identified as the de

15 § novo rule?

5 A I think that is true. I think in some areas, and
7 | I am not familiar, by any means, with all of the differsnt

i state branch banking laws, but I think in some instances the

right of a branch banking organization to establish.a de novo
Z} § branch, that is a prohibltion, lett!s put it that way, to

2t i establish a de novo branch, without the consent of the local
22 i banks in a given area 1is related to the population.

23 Q Without getting too far into the detalls of the

24 I prohibition, don't you know it to be the fact that Calif-

235 | ornia, Oregon and Washington, three of the states involved
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3tm ! | in this complaint, have all had a de novo rule in one form
2 | or another in effect during either the whole or a substantlal
3 | part of the period involved in the allegations of this
4 1 complaint?
5 A No. I am not familiar with the de novo rule in
¢ | those states.
7 Q You just don't know either way?
8 A I would take it there must be some population
9 {{ 1imitation there, otherwise if it had required the consent
10 | of the banks in the area to estéblish de novo branches, the
11 | Bank of America could not established many of the de novo
i2 | branches that they have established.
13 Q Of course, sir, the de novo rule as advocated by
14 1 you in the speech, and as we have identified it here in the’

15 | last several questions and answers, did not involve a question

16 | of consent of banks in the area. It involved a rule that a
17 i branch banking organization could not operate an additional
12 Il branch in a community which already had a unit bank without
19 i buying a unit bank, didn't 1t? That is the point to which
20 | I am addressing the question.

21 A I think that related to size of community.

22 Q@ No, sir, it didn't in your speech and it didn't
23 i 4n my question.

24 A I think the de novo branch rule does relate to the

% gize.
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Q Well, without pressing the matter, since you have
said that you are not familiar with what the rule was in
those three states, let me Just ask this fianal question:

I take it from that answer that you did not regard
it as important to determine the status of a de novo rule
in the states in question prior to approving the allegations
of this complaint.

A No, I don't think that had anythimg to do with it.

Q I see, sir. Now, isn't it also the fact that
the McFadden Act of 1927 contained a de novo provision as
to national banks until 1t was superseded by an amendment
in 19357

A You mean prohibiting the national banks from the
establishment of branches?

Q Without buying an existing bank, yes, sin

A I don't remember 1it.

Q All right. Now, the de novo rule does operate to
the benefit of stockholders of unit bamrks, doesn't it?

A Yes.

Q &hd 1t provides them with a market for their stock,
which would not otherwise exist.

A That 1s correct. It protects them.

Q Yes. As a matter of fact, the branch banking
systems, themselves, with or without the de novo rule,

provide a market for unit bank stocks which do not otherwise
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5tm 1§ exist, don't they?
20 A Will you repeat that question?

3\ Q I say the branch banking systems, themselves, with
4 or without a de novo rule, provide a market fo£ unit bank‘:\

5 || stocks which would not otherwise exist?

6 A That is correct.

7 Q That is one of the points you made in this speech

8 § that I just read.

9 A That is one of the points I made.

i0 Q That is a pretty important point in the economy

1" of banking, isn't it, Governor?

12 A It seems to me that that speech I made that you

13 | Just read, and which I agreed to then and I still favor --
4 | I mean I am still in full accord with what was said then

15| and I was only expressing a view at that time that I had had
16 { for nearly 20 years before that time. Everyone knows that
17 || I have besn a public advocate long before 1 came to Washington
18 | and long after I came to Washington of limited branch

19 || banking.

20 Q Isn't it a fact, Governor, that no branch banking
21 || system has been crcecated or can be created and developed in
22 .the manner you have approved without purchgsing unit banks?
23 A Well, it can only over a period of time, It

24 couldn't be done, certainly, very rapidly.

25 Q Do you lnow of any in existence, sir, that have
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been created without purchasing unit banks and developed to
thelir present size?

A I think they have been developed in both a com-
bination of purchasing unit banks and then getting those
banks branched as well as establishing de novo branches,
where it was -- where they were permitted, authorized to do
so. I think it has been a combination.

Q Yes,

A Both in the case of Transamerica as well as in
the case of the First Security and in the case of other
organizations that own branch banking operations. In the
case of the Arizona bank, referred to yesterday, that, of
course, is an organization, and it does not have a holding
company, where if it was going to purchase the stock of
another bank, it would have to get the consent of the --
being a national bank, of the Comptroller of the Currency
to branch that bank, otherwise, it couldn't purchase 1it.

Q It, of course, could purchase the assets of exist-
ing banks without getting the consent of anybody, couldn‘t
1t?

A It could purchase the assets and assume the
liabilities and close the bank only, eliminate the bank. It
could do that.

Q Yes. Now, Governor, essentially your proposal

in the speech I read, that de novo branches not be permitted
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Ttm 1 | except in unusual cases is designed to protect the unit

2 || banks from effective competition by the branch bank, isn't

3 | 1t?

4 A Well, it was designed to prevent -- let me put it
51 this way: I was talking to a group of bankers and I, of

6 I course, knew that the opposition of the unit commissionsrs

7 | to branch banking was very strong and that certainly unlcas
8 the unit banks were fully protected, they certainly would
9 | have a very Justiriabie and strong case against the branch
10 || banking development.

11 Q I say, sir, the purpose of that proposal, albeit
12 | made for the purpose of satisfying the unit bankers and

13 § winning their support, the purpose of it was to protect the
14§ unit banks from competition by the branch banks, wasn't 1it,
15 | that being something that you thought necessary to win their
16 | support?

17 A I think that certainly would have, it would have
18 || that effect.

19 Q Yes. And you feel that the unit banks need that
20 | protection from competition 1f they are to stay in business,
21 | don't you?

22 A I certainly do.

23 Q Arnd you know that the unit bankers for years have

24 | urged such protection under law, haven't they?

oy
13

A That is correct.
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Q And 1t hasbffpone of the primary functions of

the Independent Bankers Assoclation, so-called, that have
sprung up, isntt 1it?

A Well, there are two independent bankers associations,
as I understand it, and the reasons that they have sprung up,
I don't know.

Q Hasn't that been one of the principal causes they
have espoused in their arguments?

A That is one of the principal causes they have
espoused.

Q  And that is the real purpose of this proceeding,
isn't 1t, Governor?

A Is to do what?

Q Is to protect the unit bankers from the competition
of the branch banks?

A What proceeding?

Q This proceeding that we are trying here now?

A The purpose of this proceeding --

Q Can't you answer that yes or not and then make
your explanation, sir?

A No, I can answer it better in this way: The
purpose of the proceeding is to determine, as I stated
yesterday, whether more or less an unbridled growth, such
as has taken place in the banks of Transamerica, was in

violation of the Clavton Act.
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9tnm i Q And you and the Board have alleged that it 1is,

2 A Well, that 1s right. As I understand the provisions
| of the Clayton Act, they are that the lessening of com-

< petition --

g Q Please, Governor, I didn't ask you about the

s I provisions of the Clayton Act, and we went into that yes-

7 | terday at some length. I think you have ansvered that

JQM é 1 question and that i1s a purpose of whicgﬁfiapprove, as I

¢ || understand 1it.

10 A That 1is correct.

1 MR. STEWART: If the hearing officer pleasze, that

12 || ends this particular line of questions, and I believe 1if

13 | T went beyond it into the next, I wouid transgress the hour:
4 1 that the hearing officer indicated he wished me to regard

15 1 as a stopping. point.

16 THE HEARING OFFICER: May I thank the counsel

17 § for hils comsideration.

8 The hearing will be recessed until 10:30 tomorrow
19 1 morning.

20 (Whereupon, at 3:45 o'clock p.m., the hearing was
21 | recessed, to reconvene at 10:30 o'clock a.m., the following

22 { day, Friday, Februasry 11, 1949.)

23

25
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